
 
 
 

 
James Whiteman 

Managing Director 
 

 

 

Guildford Borough Council 

Millmead House, Millmead, Guildford, Surrey  GU2 4BB 

www.guildford.gov.uk 

Contact Officer:  

Sophie Butcher, Committee Officer Tel: 01483 
444056 

 

 
 

17 March 2020 
 
Dear Councillor 
 

Your attendance is requested at a meeting of the PLANNING COMMITTEE to be held 
in the Council Chamber, Millmead House, Millmead, Guildford, Surrey GU2 4BB on 
WEDNESDAY 25 MARCH 2020 at 7.00 pm. 
 
Yours faithfully 

 
James Whiteman 
Managing Director 
 
 

MEMBERS OF THE COMMITTEE 
 

Chairman: Councillor Marsha Moseley 
Vice-Chairman: Councillor Tony Rooth 

 
Councillor Jon Askew 
Councillor David Bilbé 
Councillor Chris Blow 
Councillor Dennis Booth 
Councillor Colin Cross 
Councillor Angela Gunning 
Councillor Jan Harwood 
 

Councillor Liz Hogger 
Councillor Bob McShee 
Councillor Susan Parker 
Councillor Caroline Reeves 
Councillor Paul Spooner 
Councillor Fiona White 
 

 
Authorised Substitute Members: 

 
Councillor Tim Anderson 
Councillor Christopher Barrass 
Councillor Richard Billington 
Councillor Graham Eyre 
Councillor Angela Goodwin 
Councillor Steven Lee 
Councillor Nigel Manning 
Councillor Ramsey Nagaty 
Councillor Jo Randall 
 

Councillor John Redpath 
Councillor Maddy Redpath 
Councillor Will Salmon 
Councillor Deborah Seabrook 
Councillor Pauline Searle 
Councillor Patrick Sheard 
Councillor James Steel 
Councillor James Walsh 
Councillor Catherine Young 
 

 
QUORUM 5 

 

Page 1



 

 

THE COUNCIL’S STRATEGIC FRAMEWORK  
 

Vision – for the borough 
 
For Guildford to be a town and rural borough that is the most desirable place to live, work 
and visit in South East England. A centre for education, healthcare, innovative cutting-edge 
businesses, high quality retail and wellbeing. A county town set in a vibrant rural 
environment, which balances the needs of urban and rural communities alike. Known for 
our outstanding urban planning and design, and with infrastructure that will properly cope 
with our needs. 
 
 
Three fundamental themes and nine strategic priorities that support our vision: 
 

Place-making   Delivering the Guildford Borough Local Plan and providing the range 
of housing that people need, particularly affordable homes 

 
  Making travel in Guildford and across the borough easier  
 
  Regenerating and improving Guildford town centre and other urban 

areas 
 
 
Community   Supporting older, more vulnerable and less advantaged people in 

our community 
 
  Protecting our environment 
 
  Enhancing sporting, cultural, community, and recreational facilities 
 
 
Innovation   Encouraging sustainable and proportionate economic growth to 

help provide the prosperity and employment that people need 
 
  Creating smart places infrastructure across Guildford 
 
  Using innovation, technology and new ways of working to improve 

value for money and efficiency in Council services 
 
 
Values for our residents 
 

 We will strive to be the best Council. 

 We will deliver quality and value for money services. 

 We will help the vulnerable members of our community. 

 We will be open and accountable.  

 We will deliver improvements and enable change across the borough. 
 

 

Page 2



 

 

A G E N D A 
 

1   APOLOGIES FOR ABSENCE AND NOTIFICATION OF SUBSTITUTE 
MEMBERS  

2   LOCAL CODE OF CONDUCT - DISCLOSABLE PECUNIARY INTERESTS  

 In accordance with the local Code of Conduct, a councillor is required to 
disclose at the meeting any disclosable pecuniary interest (DPI) that they may 
have in respect of any matter for consideration on this agenda.  Any councillor 
with a DPI must not participate in any discussion or vote regarding that matter 
and they must also withdraw from the meeting immediately before consideration 
of the matter. 
  
If that DPI has not been registered, you must notify the Monitoring Officer of the 
details of the DPI within 28 days of the date of the meeting. 
  
Councillors are further invited to disclose any non-pecuniary interest which may 
be relevant to any matter on this agenda, in the interests of transparency, and to 
confirm that it will not affect their objectivity in relation to that matter. 
  
 

3   MINUTES (Pages 11 - 18) 

 To confirm the minutes of the meeting of the Committee held on 26 February 
2020 as attached at Item 3. A copy of the minutes will be placed on the dais 
prior to the meeting. 
 

4   ANNOUNCEMENTS  

 To receive any announcements from the Chairman of the Committee. 
 

5   PLANNING AND RELATED APPLICATIONS (Pages 19 - 20) 

 All current applications between numbers 19/P/02102 and 20/W/00029 which 
are not included on the above-mentioned List, will be considered at a future 
meeting of the Committee or determined under delegated powers.  Members 
are requested to consider and determine the Applications set out in the Index of 
Applications. 
 

6   19/P/02102 - LAND AT MANOR FARM, THE STREET, TONGHAM, GU10 
1DG (Pages 21 - 62) 

7   20/P/00045 - 9 GREENSIDE CLOSE, GUILDFORD, GU4 7EU (Pages 63 - 70) 

8   20/W/00029 - 11 THE OVAL, GUILDFORD, GU2 7TS (Pages 71 - 78) 

9   PLANNING APPEAL DECISIONS (Pages 79 - 86) 

 Committee members are asked to note the details of Appeal Decisions as 
attached at Item 6. 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Page 3



WEBCASTING NOTICE 

This meeting will be recorded for live and/or subsequent broadcast on the Council’s website in 
accordance with the Council’s capacity in performing a task in the public interest and in line with 
the Openness of Local Government Bodies Regulations 2014.  The whole of the meeting will be 
recorded,  except where there are confidential or exempt items, and the footage will be on the 
website for six months. 
 
If you have any queries regarding webcasting of meetings, please contact Committee Services. 
 

 

Page 4



NOTES: 
(i) Procedure for determining planning and related applications: 

 
1. A Planning Officer will present the Officer’s report. 

 
2. Members of the public who have registered to speak may then address the 

meeting in accordance with the agreed procedure for public speaking (a maximum 

of two objectors followed by a maximum of two supporters).  

 
3. The Chairman gives planning officer’s the right to reply in response to comments 

that have been made during the public speaking session.  

 

4. Any councillor(s) who are not member(s) of the Planning Committee, but who wish 
to speak on an application, either in or outside of their ward, will be then allowed 
for no longer than three minutes each.  It will be at the Chairman’s discretion to 
permit councillor(s) to speak for longer than three minutes.  [Councillors should 
notify the Committee Officer, in writing, by no later than midday the day before the 
meeting of their intention to speak.]  If the application is deferred, any councillor(s) 
who are not member(s) of the Planning Committee will not be permitted to speak 
when the application is next considered by the Committee. 

 
5. The Chairman will then open up the application for debate.: 

 
(a) No speech shall be longer than three minutes for all Committee members; 

 

(b)  No councillor to speak more than once during the debate on the application; 

 

(c) Members shall avoid repetition of points made earlier in the debate. 

 

(d) The Chairman gives planning officer’s the right to reply in response to 

comments that have been made during the debate, and prior to the vote being 

taken. 

 

(e) Once the debate has concluded, the Chairman will automatically move the 

officer’s recommendation following the debate on that item.  If it is seconded, 

the motion is put to the vote.  A simple majority vote is required for the motion 

to be carried.  If it is not seconded or the motion is not carried then the 

Chairman will ask for a second alternative motion to be put to the vote. 

 

In any case where the motion is contrary to officer recommendation that is: 

 

 Approval to refusal, or; 
 

 Refusal to approval; 
 

 Or where the motion proposes additional reasons or additional conditions. 
 

 In advance of the vote, provided that any such proposal has been 
properly moved and seconded, the Chairman shall adjourn the meeting to 
allow officers; the mover of the motion and the Chairman to discuss the 
reason(s), conditions (where applicable) and policy(ies) put forward to 
ensure that they are sufficiently precise, state the harm (where applicable) 
and support the correct policies to justify the motion.  Following any 

Page 5



adjournment, upon reconvening the Chairman will put to the Committee 
the motion and the reason(s) for the decision before moving to the vote.  
 

(f) A motion can also be proposed and seconded at any time to defer or adjourn 
consideration of an application (for example for further information/advice 
backed by supporting reasons). 
 

6. Unless otherwise decided by a majority of councillors present and voting at the 
meeting, all Planning Committee meetings shall finish by no later than 10:30pm. 

 
Any outstanding items not completed by the end of the meeting shall be 

adjourned to the reconvened or next ordinary meeting of the Committee. 

7. In order for a planning application to be referred to the full Council for 
determination in its capacity as the Local Planning Authority, a councillor must 
first with a seconder, write/email the Democratic Services Manager detailing the 
rationale for the request (the proposer and seconder does not have to be a 
planning committee member). 

 
The Democratic Services Manager shall inform all councillors by email of the 
request to determine an application by full Council, including the rationale 
provided for that request.  The matter would then be placed as an agenda item 
for consideration at the next Planning Committee meeting.  The proposer and 
seconder would each be given three minutes to state their case.  The decision to 
refer a planning application to the full Council will be decided by a majority vote of 
the Planning Committee. 
 

GUIDANCE NOTE 
For Planning Committee Members 

 
Probity in Planning – Role of Councillors 
Councillors on the Planning Committee sit as a non-judicial body, but act in a 
semi-judicial capacity, representative of the whole community in making 
decisions on planning applications.  They must, therefore: 
 

1. act fairly, openly and apolitically; 
 

2. approach each planning application with an open mind, 
avoid pre-conceived opinions; 

 
3. carefully weigh up all relevant issues; 

 
4. determine each application on its individual planning 

merits; 

 
5. avoid undue contact with interested parties; and 

 
6. ensure that the reasons for their decisions are clearly 

stated. 

 
The above role applies to councillors who are nominated substitutes on the 
Planning Committee.  Where a councillor, who is neither a member of, nor a 
substitute on the Planning Committee, attends a meeting of the Committee, he or 
she is also under a duty to act fairly and openly and avoid any actions which 
might give rise to an impression of bias or undue influence. 
 

Page 6



Equally, the conduct of members of any working party or committee considering 
planning policy must be similar to that outlined above relating to the Planning 
Committee. 
 
Reason for Refusal 
 
How a reason for refusal is constructed. 
 
A reason for refusal should carefully describe the harm of the development as 
well as detailing any conflicts with policies or proposals in the development plan 
which are relevant to the decision. 
 
When formulating reasons for refusal Members will need to: 
 
(1) Describe those elements of the proposal that are harmful, e.g. bulk, massing, 

lack of something, loss of something. 
(2) State what the harm is e.g. character, openness of the green belt, retail 

function and; 
(3) The reason will need to make reference to policy to justify the refusal. 

 
Example  
The proposed change of use would result in the loss of A1 retail frontage at Guildford 
Town Centre, which would be detrimental to the retail function of the town and contrary 
to policy SS9 in the Guildford Local Plan. 
 
 
Reason for Approval 
 
How a reason for approval is constructed. 
 
A reason for approval should carefully detail a summary of the reasons for the grant of 
planning permission and a summary of the policies and proposals in the development 
plan, which are relevant to the decision. 
 
Example: 
 
The proposal has been found to comply with Green Belt policy as it relates to a 
replacement dwelling and would not result in any unacceptable harm to the openness or 
visual amenities of the Green Belt.  As such the proposal is found to comply with saved 
policies RE2 and H6 of the Council’s saved Local Plan and national Green Belt policy in 
the NPPF. 
 
Reason for Deferral 
 
Applications should only be deferred if the Committee feels that it requires further 
information or to enable further discussions with the applicant or in exceptional 
circumstances to enable a collective site visit to be undertaken. 
 
Clear reasons for a deferral must be provided with a summary of the policies in the 
development plan which are relevant to the deferral. 
. 
 

Page 7



APPLICATIONS FOR PLANNING PERMISSION & RELATED APPLICATIONS FOR 
CONSIDERATION BY THE PLANNING COMMITTEE 

 
NOTES: 

Officers Report  
Officers have prepared a report for each planning or related application on the 
Planning Committee Index which details:- 

 Site location plan; 

 Site Description; 

 Proposal; 

 Planning History; 

 Consultations; and 

 Planning Policies and Considerations. 
 

Each report also includes a recommendation to either approve or refuse the 
application.  Recommended reason(s) for refusal or condition(s) of approval and 
reason(s) including informatives are set out in full in each report. 

 
Written Representations 

Copies of representations received in respect of the applications listed are available 
for inspection by Councillors at the plans viewing session held prior to the meeting 
and will also be available at the meeting.  Late representations will be summarised in 
a report which will be circulated at the meeting. 
 
Planning applications and any representations received in relation to applications are 
available for inspection at the Planning Services reception by prior arrangement with 
the Head of Planning Services. 
 

Background Papers  
 
In preparing the reports relating to applications referred to on the Planning 
Committee Index, the Officers refer to the following background documents:- 

 

 The Town and Country Planning Act 1990, Planning and Compulsory Purchase 
Act 2004, the Localism Act and other current Acts, Statutory Instruments and 
Circulars as published by the Department for Communities and Local 
Government (CLG). 

 

 Guildford Borough Local Plan: Strategy and Sites 2015-2034. 
 

 The South East Plan, Regional Spatial Strategy for the South East (May 2009). 
 

 The National Planning Policy Framework (NPPF) (March 2012) 
 

 The Town and Country Planning (General Permitted Development) Order 1995, 
as amended (2010). 

 

 Consultation responses and other correspondence as contained in the 
application file, together with such other files and documents which may 
constitute the history of the application site or other sites in the locality. 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 Page 8



Human Rights Act 1998  
The Human Rights Act 1998 (the 1998 Act) came into effect in October 2000 when the 
provisions of the European Convention on Human Rights (the ECHR) were incorporated 
into UK Law. 
 
The determination of the applications which are the subject of reports are considered to 
involve the following human rights issues: 
 

1 Article 6(1):  right to a fair and public hearing 

In the determination of a person’s civil rights and obligations everyone is entitled to a fair 
and public hearing within a reasonable time by an independent and impartial tribunal 
established by law. Judgment shall be pronounced publicly but the press and public may 
be excluded from all or part of the hearing in certain circumstances (e.g. in the interest of 
morals, strictly necessary in the opinion of the court in special circumstances where 
publicity would prejudice the interests of justice.) 
 

2 Article 8:  right to respect for private and family life (including where 

the article 8 rights are those of children s.11 of the Children Act 2004) 

Everyone has the right to respect for his private and family life, his home and his 
correspondence. There shall be no interference by a public authority with the exercise of 
this right except such as is in accordance with the law and is necessary in a democratic 
society in the interests of national security, public safety or the economic well-being of 
the country, for the prevention of disorder or crime, for the protection of health or morals, 
or for the protection of the rights and freedoms of others. 
 
s.11 of the Childrens Act 2004 requires the Council to make arrangements for ensuring 
that their functions are discharged having regard to the need to safeguard and promote 
the welfare of children. Furthermore, any services provided by another person pursuant 
to arrangements made by the Council in the discharge of their functions must likewise be 
provided having regard to the need to safeguard and promote the welfare of children. 
 

3 Article 14:  prohibition from discrimination 

The enjoyment of the rights and freedoms set out in the ECHR shall be secured without 
discrimination on any ground such as sex, race, colour, language, religion, political or 
other opinion, national or social origin, association with a national minority, property, birth 
or other status. 
 

4 Article 1 Protocol 1: protection of property;  

Every person is entitled to the peaceful enjoyment of his possessions. No one shall be 
deprived of their possessions except in the public interest and subject to the conditions 
provided for by law and by the general principles of international law. However, the state 
retains the right to enforce such laws as it deems necessary to control the use of 
property in accordance with the general interest or to secure the payment of taxes or 
other contributions or penalties. 
 

5 Article 2 Protocol 1: right to education. 

No person shall be denied the right to education. 
 
Councillors should take account of the provisions of the 1998 Act as they relate to the 
applications on this agenda when balancing the competing interests of the applicants, 
any third party opposing the application and the community as a whole in reaching their 
decision. Any interference with an individual’s human rights under the 1998 Act/ECHR 
must be just and proportionate to the objective in question and must not be arbitrary, Page 9



unfair or oppressive.  Having had regard to those matters in the light of the convention 
rights referred to above your officers consider that the recommendations are in 
accordance with the law, proportionate and both necessary to protect the rights and 
freedoms of others and in the public interest. 
 
Costs 
In planning appeals the parties involved normally meet their own costs. Most appeals do 
not result in a costs application. A costs award where justified is an order which states 
that one party shall pay to another party the costs, in full or part, which has been incurred 
during the process by which the Secretary of State or Inspector’s  decision is reached. 
Any award made will not necessary follow the outcome of the appeal.  An unsuccessful 
appellant is not expected to reimburse the planning authority for the costs incurred in 
defending the appeal.  Equally the costs of a successful appellant are not bourne by the 
planning authority as a matter of course. 
However, where: 
 

 A party has made a timely application for costs 

 The party against whom the award is sought has behaved unreasonably; and 

 The unreasonable behaviour has directly caused the party applying for the costs 

to incur unnecessary or wasted expense in the appeal process a full or partial 

award is likely. 

 
The word “unreasonable” is used in its ordinary meaning as established in the courts in 
Manchester City Council v SSE & Mercury Communications Limited 1988 JPL 774. 
Behaviour which is regarded as unreasonable may be procedural or substantive in 
nature. Procedural relates to the process. Substantive relates to the issues arising on the 
appeal. The authority  is at  risk of an award of costs against it if it prevents  or delays 
development, which should clearly be permitted having regard to the development plan. 
The authority must  produce evidence to show clearly why the development cannot be 
permitted. The authority’s decision notice must be carefully framed and should set out 
the full reasons for refusal. Reasons should be complete, precise, specific and relevant 
to the application. The Planning authority must produce evidence at appeal stage to 
substantiate each reason for refusal with reference to the development plan and all other 
material considerations. If the authority  cannot do so it is at risk of a costs award being 
made against it for unreasonable behaviour. The key test is whether evidence is 
produced on appeal which provides a respectable basis for the authority’s stance in the 
light of R v SSE ex parte North Norfolk DC 1994 2 PLR 78. If one reason is not properly 
supported but substantial evidence has been produced in support of the others a partial 
award may be made against the authority. Further advice can be found in the 
Department of Communities and Local Government Circular 03/2009 and now Planning 
Practice Guidance: Appeals  paragraphs 027-064 inclusive. 
 

Page 10



 
PLANNING COMMITTEE 

26 FEBRUARY 2020 
 

96 
 

PLANNING COMMITTEE 
 
 

* Councillor Marsha Moseley (Chairman) 
 * Councillor Tony Rooth (Vice-Chair) 

 
* Councillor Jon Askew 
* Councillor David Bilbé 
* Councillor Chris Blow 
  Councillor Dennis Booth 
* Councillor Colin Cross 
* Councillor Angela Gunning 
* Councillor Jan Harwood 
 

* Councillor Liz Hogger 
* Councillor Bob McShee 
* Councillor Susan Parker 
* Councillor Caroline Reeves 
* Councillor Paul Spooner 
  Councillor Fiona White 
 

 
*Present 

 
Councillors Ruth Brothwell, John Redpath, Maddy Redpath and Patrick Sheard were also in 
attendance. 
 
 

PL131   APOLOGIES FOR ABSENCE AND NOTIFICATION OF SUBSTITUTE MEMBERS  
 

Apologies for absence were received from the following; Councillors Dennis Booth and Fiona 
White for whom Councillors Christopher Barrass and James Steel attended as substitutes 
respectively. 
 

PL132   LOCAL CODE OF CONDUCT - DISCLOSABLE PECUNIARY INTERESTS  
 

No disclosures of interest were declared. 
 

PL133   MINUTES  
 

The minutes of the meeting held on 29 January 2020 were approved and signed by the 
Chairman. 
 

PL134   ANNOUNCEMENTS  
 

The Committee noted the procedures for determining planning applications. 
 

PL135   19/P/01915 - 6 MOUNTSIDE, GUILDFORD, GU2 4JE  
 

Prior to consideration of the application, the following persons addressed the Committee in 
accordance with Public Speaking Procedure Rules 3(b): 
  

         Ms Millie Skinner (in support) 
  
The Committee considered the above-mentioned full application for erection of a two storey 
rear extension, insertion of balcony to rear and changes to fenestration (amended description 
following the receipt of amended plans 11 December 2019).  Further amended plans received 
14 January 2020. 
  

Page 11

Agenda item number: 3



 
PLANNING COMMITTEE 

26 FEBRUARY 2020 
 

97 
 

The Committee was informed by the planning officer that amended plans had been received 
during the application process.  After receiving negative feedback from neighbours the 
proposed off-street parking spaces had been removed from the plans.  The proposal now 
included no alterations to the front of the property or parking arrangements that affected the 
road or highway safety.  The extension proposed would not conflict with the 45-degree angle of 
the neighbouring property and would therefore have an acceptable impact in terms of loss of 
light.  The extension and proposed rear and west side elevations during the application process 
were amended to reduce the size of the extension on the west side and the height reduced to 
avoid impacting upon the neighbouring property.  The width of the rear balcony had also been 
reduced and obscure glazed privacy screens would be installed on both sides.  The utility room 
window on the west side would be obscure glazed.  It was the officer’s view that the proposed 
extension would be in keeping with the size and character of the existing property and whilst 
the proposals would have some impact on the amenities of the neighbouring properties the 
impact would not be so great to warrant refusal. 
  
The Committee discussed the application and was satisfied that the amendments made 
throughout the application process, as outlined above, had sufficiently addressed neighbours 
concerns.  
  
A motion was moved and seconded which was carried to approve the application.  
  
In conclusion, having taken account of the representations received in relation to this 
application, the Committee 
  
RESOLVED to approve application 19/P/01915 subject to the reasons and conditions as 
detailed in the report. 
  

PL136   19/P/01980 - LAND OFF, WESTWOOD LANE, WANBROUGH, GUILDFORD  
 

Prior to consideration of the application, the following persons addressed the Committee in 
accordance with Public Speaking Procedure Rules 3(b): 
  

         Ms Mary Adkins (to object) and; 

         Mr Stephen Callender (to object) 
  
The Committee considered the above-mentioned full application for erection of agricultural barn 
and shade tunnel (on land referred to as Berry Farm by the applicant) (additional and amended 
plans received on 06/02/2020 and 07/02/2020). 
  
The Committee was informed by the planning officer to note the supplementary late sheets 
which detailed an amendment to condition 3, an additional condition and two additional 
informatives.  The application was for the erection of a horticultural barn for the growing of 
ornamental trees and shrubs for wholesale.  The site was located in the Green Belt, was within 
an Area of Great Landscape Value (AGLV) and was on the boundary of the Surrey Hills Area of 
Outstanding Natural Beauty (AONB).  The south of the site was characterised by open fields 
and vehicle access was obtained via the western side of Westwood Lane.  The site was 
covered by an Article 4 Direction removing permitted development rights and which meant that 
no fences, gates or other means of enclosure were permitted as this type of subdivision would 
interfere with the visual amenity and open nature of the land.  Some ancient woodland was also 
located to the north of the site.  Two main structures were proposed for the site, a shade tunnel, 
barn and water tanks and pump, as well as a drip line structure in the north eastern corner of 
the site.  The barn would be clad with green steel cladding and the proposed shade tunnel 
would be covered in a green mesh material.  It was the officers view that the proposal 
represented appropriate development within the Green Belt and would not result in an adverse 

Page 12

Agenda item number: 3



 
PLANNING COMMITTEE 

26 FEBRUARY 2020 
 

98 
 

impact on the character of the AGLV or its setting and would have no impact on neighbouring 
amenity or highway safety.   
  
In relation to comments made by public speakers, the planning officer confirmed that the site 
was not located within the AONB but was close to it.  In terms of the hardstanding, a further 
condition had been detailed on the supplementary late sheets to secure further details of the 
type of hardstanding proposed.  In terms of the site being located in the Green Belt, agricultural 
development which includes horticulture was appropriate development in the Green Belt. 
  
The Committee discussed the application and agreed that a site visit be held for councillors to 
view the site from Westwood Lane, both from inside and outside of the site.  The site visit would 
also give councillors an opportunity to appreciate the openness of the Green Belt and AGLV, of 
which this site was a part as well as the views of the AONB.  The Committee noted that the 
AONB officer had not yet been consulted in relation to this application and a deferral for a site 
visit would give the time for such a consultation to take place so to seek their views.  Issues of 
biodiversity and the sites proximity to ancient woodland also needed to be considered.     
  
A Motion was moved and seconded and carried so that a site visit was held on Tuesday 21 
April from 9:30am. 
  
In conclusion, having taken account of the representations received in relation to this 
application, the Committee 
  
RESOLVED to undertake a site visit on Tuesday 21 April from 9:30am. 
  

PL137   19/P/01807 - 60 QUARRY STREET, GUILDFORD, GU1 3UA  
 

The Committee considered the above-mentioned full application for the change of use of the 
premises from A1 uses to mixed use (A1/A4) (retrospective application) (revised location plan 
and floor plan received on 28/01/2020 to include the patio area to the rear of the Corkage unit 
within the red line area) (description amended 28/01/2020).   
  
The Committee was informed by the planning officer that the application proposed a change of 
use of the premises from A1 use to a mixed use of A1 retail and A4 drinking establishment.  
The site was located in the urban area within the Guildford Town Centre Conservation Area.  60 
Quarry Street was a three-storey building which was relatively deep, with a courtyard to the rear 
and residential units on the first and second floors.  The application site was located opposite 
the Grade I listed St Mary’s Church.  The relationship with the residential units adjoining the site 
had been considered by the Council’s Environmental Health team and had raised no objection 
subject to condition which limited the opening hours for the patio.  It was the officer’s view that 
the proposal was appropriate in a town centre location and would not result in the loss of class 
A use.  It would not have an adverse effect on the character of the area or would it impact on 
neighbouring amenity subject to a condition limiting hours in the patio area.  The updated 
conditions were set out on page 54 of the agenda.   
  
The Chairman permitted Councillor John Redpath to speak in his capacity as ward councillor in 
relation to this application. 
  
The Committee considered concerns raised regarding the effect of the proposed change of use 
of the premises upon neighbouring amenities.  Particularly of concern was the use of the patio 
at night and its effect upon the residential units above caused by customer noise, light pollution 
and smoke smells.  The Committee also noted concerns raised that the owners of the flats 
above may find it difficult to sell their properties in the future owing to the change of use of the 
premises to a mixed-use establishment.  The Planning Solicitor in attendance advised that this 
issue was not a material planning consideration but was a private land matter.   

Page 13

Agenda item number: 3



 
PLANNING COMMITTEE 

26 FEBRUARY 2020 
 

99 
 

  
On balance, the Committee considered that owing to their concerns regarding the effect of the 
change of use upon the residents enjoyment of their amenities, a temporary planning 
permission was recommended to commence for 12 months with the use of the rear patio 
permitted only between the hours of 11:00hrs to 17:00 hrs, daily.  After that time had lapsed, 
the applicant could reapply.  
  
A motion was moved and seconded to approve the application which resulted in a tied vote.  
The Chairman used her casting vote in favour of approving the temporary planning permission 
of application 19/P/01807 for a period of 12 months with the use of the rear patio only permitted 
between the hours of 11:00 hrs to 17:00 hrs, daily. 
  
In conclusion, having taken account of the representations received in relation to this 
application, the Committee 
  
RESOLVED to approve a temporary planning permission of application 19/P/01807 for a period 
of 12 months with the use of the rear patio only permitted between the hours of 11:00 hrs to 
17:00 hrs, daily.   
  
1. The development hereby permitted shall be carried out in accordance with 
amended site location plan and drawing number STA.CORKAGE.GA001 received 
on 28/01/2020. 
  
Reason: To ensure that the development is carried out in accordance with the 
approved plans and in the interests of proper planning. 
  
2. The rear patio area shall not be used other than between the hours of 11:00 hrs 
to 17:00 hrs, daily. 
  
Reason: To safeguard the residential amenities of neighbouring properties. 
3. The change of use of the premises from A1 use to mixed use (A1/A4) hereby 
permitted shall be for a limited period of time expiring on 28/02/2021. On or 
before the expiry date the mixed use (A1/A4) shall discontinue and revert back to 
solely A1 use. 
  
Reason: In granting this permission the local planning authority wishes to be able 
to assess the potential impact of the A1/A4 use in respect of impacts on 
neighbouring amenity. 
  

PL138   19/P/01297 - THE OLD SCHOOLHOUSE, OLD FARM ROAD, GUILDFORD, GU1 
1QN  
 

The Committee considered the above-mentioned full application for erection of 9 residential 
flats (2 x one bedroom and 7 x two bedroom), communal areas, car parking, cycle parking, 
landscaping and associated works following demolition of existing ‘B8 use’ building (amended 
plans received on 15/11/2019 and 13/01/2020). 
  
The Committee noted that a site visit had been held on Tuesday 25 February owing to 
concerns raised by the ward Councillor Angela Gunning that the proposed design and size of 
the development was out of keeping with the surrounding area.   
  
The Committee was informed by the planning officer that the site was located in the urban area 
of Guildford and occupied a corner plot facing Woking Road to the west and Old Farm Road to 
the south.  Residential properties were located to the north and east of the site and to the 
immediate south was an electricity substation.  The proposed flatted block would be located in 

Page 14

Agenda item number: 3



 
PLANNING COMMITTEE 

26 FEBRUARY 2020 
 

100 
 

the eastern part of the site and the parking area in the western part.  The proposed 
development would have a smaller footprint than the existing building.  The building would have 
a modern design, three storeys in height and materials used would be a mix of timber cladding 
render and brick.  It was the officer’s view that the proposed change of use from B8 to 
residential use was considered acceptable.  The modern design of the building was not 
considered to have a detrimental impact on the character and appearance of the area and 
would integrate well with the surrounding area.  No harmful impact would be caused to 
neighbouring amenities, parking or highway safety. 
  
The Committee considered concerns raised that the proposed replacement building was not in 
character with the surrounding area.  The proposed modern flats were not in keeping with the 
older houses located nearby that were characterised by red brick and red roofs.  The building 
proposed to be removed was one of the first schools built in the UK under the Local Education 
Act in 1870.  However, the Committee noted that the building was not listed and was therefore 
not afforded any sort of protection from demolition.  
  
The Committee considered the proposal and on balance agreed that the proposed replacement 
building of nine flats was well designed, in scale with the surrounding area and its footprint was 
smaller than the building already in situ.   
  
A motion was moved and seconded to approve the application which was carried. 
  
In conclusion, having taken account of the representations received in relation to this 
application, the Committee 
  
RESOLVED to approve application 19/P/01297 subject: 
  

i)              That a Section 106 agreement be entered into to: 
  

         SANG and SAMM contributions  
  

If the terms of the S106 or wording of the planning conditions or significantly amended as 
part of on going S106 or planning conditions negotiations any changes shall be agreed in 
consultation with the chairman of the planning committee and lead ward member. 
  
ii)             That upon completion of the above, the application be determined by the Planning 

Development Manager.  The preliminary view is that the application should be 
granted subject to conditions. 

  

PL139   19/P/01577 - 22A SEND BARNS LANE, SEND, WOKING, GU23 7BS  
 

The Committee considered the above-mentioned outline planning permission for up to 10 
residential units (9 net additional) (Use Class C3) with new access and junction arrangement on 
Send Barns Lane and all other matters reserved. 
  
The Committee noted that a site visit had been held on 7 January 2020 in relation to the above 
application.  It was also deferred by the Committee at its meeting on 8 January to enable the 
applicant the opportunity to amend the illustrative plan and consider a change in the description 
for ‘up to ten residential units’ instead of simply for ‘ten residential units’.  The Committee was 
also advised that the applicant declined to change the description and that they produced three 
illustrative layouts for members of the Committee to see how the site could potentially be 
developed. 
  
The Committee was informed by the planning officer that the site was located on the western 
side of Send Barns Lane.  The front of the site was currently occupied by a single detached 

Page 15

Agenda item number: 3



 
PLANNING COMMITTEE 

26 FEBRUARY 2020 
 

101 
 

dwelling and to the rear was a large open field.  Residential properties were located to the north 
and close to a primary school.  The proposal was to close off the existing junction access and 
create a new junction further to the north to allow a new access to the site.  No objection had 
been raised by Surrey County Council Highway Authority.   
  
The Committee noted the amended indicative layout for the proposed housing.  The access 
arrangements to the site remained the same.  The tandem parking had been removed and 
replaced with parallel parking along the front of the plots.  More generous plots had been 
created overall with larger side and rear gardens and a reduction in hardstanding by the 
narrowing of the driveways.  It was the officer’s view that the access proposed was acceptable 
in terms of highway safety and capacity.  The site was capable of accommodating ten 
properties and the site layout plans were for illustrative purposes only.  Issues such as 
appearance, landscaping, layout, scale and housing mix would all be considered at the 
reserved matters stage. 
  
The Committee considered on balance that the illustrative layout was much improved and had 
created more space overall for residents.  The proposal was also of relatively low density of 20-
24 dwellings per hectare which was relatively low compared with what was anticipated in the 
centre of a village which was inset.  The Committee expressed their concern regarding refusal 
collection and residents having to wheel their bins down a long access road.  The Committee 
also remained concerned about the access road proposed however was fully aware that Surrey 
Highways had not objected.  The Committee accepted that issues such as scale, layout, 
landscaping, appearance and housing mix would be considered at reserved matters stage. 
  
A motion was moved and seconded which was carried to approve the application.   
  
In conclusion, having taken account of the representations received in relation to this 
application, the Committee 
  
RESOLVED to approve application 19/P/01577 subject: 
  

(i)            That a S106 agreement be entered into to secure: 
  

         SANG and SAMM contributions 
  

If the terms of the S106 or wording of the planning conditions are significantly amended as 
part of ongoing S106 or planning condition(s) negotiations any changes shall be agreed in 
consultation with the Chairman of the Planning Committee and lead Ward Member. 
  
(ii)           That upon completion of the above, the application be determined by the Director of 

Planning and Regeneration.  The preliminary view is that the application should be 
granted subject to conditions. 

  

PL140   20/P/00225 - 184 ALDERSHOT ROAD, GUILDFORD, GU2 8BL  
 

The Committee considered the above-mentioned Certificate of Lawful development for a 
proposed use or development to establish whether the proposed conversion of existing loft 
space to habitable accommodation including three front facing rooflights and a rear dormer with 
Juliet balcony is lawful. 
  
In conclusion, having taken account of the representations received in relation to this 
application, the Committee 
  
RESOLVED to approve application 20/P/00225 for permitted development.  The proposed 
conversion of existing loft space to habitable accommodation including three front facing 

Page 16

Agenda item number: 3



 
PLANNING COMMITTEE 

26 FEBRUARY 2020 
 

102 
 

rooflights and a rear dormer with Juliet balcony falls within planning permission granted by 
Schedule 2, Part 1, Classes B and C of the Town and Country Planning (General Permitted 
Development) (England) Order 2015 (as amended).   
  

PL141   PLANNING APPEAL DECISIONS  
 

The Committee noted the appeal decisions. 
 
 
 
 
The meeting finished at 8.45 pm 
 
 
 
 
 
Signed   Date  

  

Chairman 
   

 

Page 17

Agenda item number: 3



This page is intentionally left blank



 

 

GUILDFORD BOROUGH COUNCIL 
 

PLANNING COMMITTEE INDEX 
 

25/03/2020 
 

Item 
No. 

Parish 
 

Applicant Location App.No. Rec. Page 

5.1 Tongham Bellway Home Ltd 
(South London) 
and Taylor Wimpey 
UK Ltd c/o Agent 

Land at Manor Farm, The Street, 
Tongham, GU10 1DG 

19/P/02102 APPC 21. 

Item 
No. 

Parish 
 

Applicant Location App.No. Rec. Page 

5.2 Merrow Mr Rapaport, 9 
Greenside Close 

9 Greenside Close, Guildford, GU4 
7EU 

20/P/00045 APPC 63. 

Item 
No. 

Parish 
 

Applicant Location App.No. Rec. Page 

5.3 Holy Trinity Mt & Mrs Askew, 
11 The Oval 

11 The Oval, Guildford, GU2 7TS 20/W/00029 PANR 71. 

 
Total Applications for Committee  3 

Page 19

Agenda item number: 5



This page is intentionally left blank



RESIDENTIAL

SANG

Page 21

Agenda item number: 6



 
19/P/02102 – Land at Manor Farm, The Street, Tongham GU10 1DG 

Not to scale 

 

P
age 22

A
genda item

 num
ber: 6



App No:  19/P/02102 8 Wk Deadline: 31/03/2020
Appn Type: Reserved Matters Application
Case Officer: Kelly Jethwa
Parish: Tongham Ward: Ash South & Tongham
Agent : Mr. Robert Steele

Savills UK
244-246 High Street
Guildford
GU1 3JF

Applicant: Bellway Home Ltd (South
London) and Taylor Wimpey
UK Ltd c/o Agent

Location: Land at Manor Farm, The Street, Tongham, GU10 1DG
Proposal: Reserved matters application pursuant to outline permission

16/P/00222 permitted on 26/01/2018, to consider appearance,
landscaping, layout and scale in respect of the erection of 254
dwellings and including the creation of open spaces, drainage
systems and associated infrastructure.

Executive Summary

Reason for referral

This application has been referred to the Planning Committee by the ward councillor Paul
Spooner, due to concerns in relation to sustainable design, construction and energy, the design
and layout of homes facing The Street and the impact of noise for occupiers close to the Hog’s
Back edge.

Key information

The application site is a 13 (approx.) hectare parcel of land that is located to the north of the
Hog’s Back in Tongham. The site is currently laid to fallow and was previous used for arable
farming for the growing of hops. The prominent Poplar trees along the site boundaries and within
the site are evidence of this use, as they were planted as windbreakers.

The site is on the southern edge of Tongham village, opposite the Hog’s Back brewery and
adjoined by fields and paddocks to the north with the A331 Blackwater relief road beyond this.
There are a number of statutory listed buildings and locally listed buildings at the Hog’s Back
Brewery site and along Grange Road.

The application is for the reserved matters for 254 dwellings on the site. The proposed mix is
provided below.

Proposed Mix
1-bed 2-bed 3-bed 4+-bed Total

Total dwellings 27 86 99 42 254

Of which...
Houses 64 99 42 205
Apartments 27 22 49
Affordable 23 39 27 89

Page 23

Agenda item number: 6



The applicant is providing 89 affordable dwellings.

A total of 396 car parking spaces are provided. A large area of formal open space is being
created for future residents of the scheme in the middle of the site adjoining the gas easement
with more informal open space accessible along the gas easement, the site boundaries and
around the copse.

Summary of considerations and constraints

This is an allocated site which now forms part of the urban area of Ash and Tongham under
policy A31 of the adopted Local Plan. Whilst there would be an inevitable change in the character
and appearance of the land, the principle of development here has already been found to be
acceptable under the outline planning permission, allowed at appeal.

While it is acknowledged that the proposal results in some changes to the setting of the listed
buildings at the Hog’s Back and Grange Farm complexes, the gaps to boundaries and
landscaping would mitigate this harm and there would be no material harm.

There is a well devised landscaping strategy with significant tree planting and introduction of
native species and wildflower meadows as biodiversity gains to the site.

The applicant has provided a sustainability report which confirms that they would exceed the
sustainability measures required on the outline permission and would have a 20% reduction in
carbon emissions and provide fast electric charge points to all houses and flats. The
sustainability measures would exceed those required on the outline permission.

The refuse strategy has been developed to comply with the Council’s requirements with minimal
reversing manoeuvres and satisfactory drag distances.

The appearance, scale and layout would ensure an integration with the existing village with
multiple connectivity through the site and to existing routes. There would also be an east-west
axis to the existing field gate to the brewery and a visual corridor to the Cambridge Military
Hospital in Aldershot.

Following the refusal of the previous reserved matters application (18/P/02461) in July 2019 the
application has entered into a Planning Performance Agreement (PPA), which has involved
pre-application advice, design review panel and amendments to the application to raise the
quality of the scheme and address the previous reasons for refusal.

RECOMMENDATION:

Approve - subject to the following condition(s) and reason(s) :- 

1. The development hereby permitted shall be carried out in accordance with the
following approved plans:

Date
submitted

Drawing no. Plan

09.12.2019 S101 Site Location Plan

17.02.2020 P101 Rev A Proposed Site Layout

Page 24

Agenda item number: 6



17.02.2020 C101 Rev A Coloured Site Layout

17.02.2020 C102 Rev A Coloured Street Elevation A-A

17.02.2020 C103 Rev A Coloured Street Elevation B-B

17.02.2020 C104 Rev A Coloured Street Elevation C-C

17.02.2020 C105 Rev A Coloured Street Elevation D-D

17.02.2020 C106 Rev A Coloured Street Elevation E-E

17.02.2020 C107 Rev A Coloured Street Elevation F-F

17.02.2020 C113 Rev A Coloured Building Scale Plan

17.02.2020 C116 Rev A Coloured Dwelling Mix Plan

17.02.2020 C117 Rev A Coloured Tenure Plan

17.02.2020 C118 Rev A Coloured Parking Plan

17.02.2020 C119 Rev A Coloured Refuse Plan

17.02.2020 P110 Rev A Plots 1, 75, 112 (Plans and Elevations)

17.02.2020 P111 Rev A Plots 2 & 3 (Plans and Elevations)

17.02.2020 P112 Rev A Plot 14 (Plans and Elevations)

17.02.2020 P113 Rev A Plots 4-9 (Plans)

17.02.2020 P114 Rev A Plots 4-9 (Elevations)

17.02.2020 P115 Rev A Plot 10 (Plans and Elevations)

17.02.2020 P116 Rev A Plots 11-13 (Plans and Elevations)

17.02.2020 P117 Rev A Plots 21-22 (Plans and Elevations)

17.02.2020 P118 Rev A Plots 17-20 (Plans and Elevations)

17.02.2020 P119 Rev A Plots 15-16, 23-24, 29-30 (Plans and
Elevations)

17.02.2020 P120 Rev A Plots 27-29 (Plans and Elevations)

17.02.2020 P121 Rev A Plots 31-32, 46-47 (Plans and Elevations)

17.02.2020 P122 Rev A Plots 33-39 (Plans)

17.02.2020 P123 Rev A Plots 33-39 (Elevations)

17.02.2020 P124 Rev A Plots 40-41 (Plans and Elevations)

17.02.2020 P125 Rev A Plots 42, 77 (Plans and Elevations)

Page 25

Agenda item number: 6



17.02.2020 P126 Rev A Plots 43, 44, 45, 55, 72, 73, 78, 79, 113 (Pl &
El)

17.02.2020 P127 Rev A Plots 48-49 (Plans and Elevations)

17.02.2020 P128 Rev A Plots 50-54 (Plans)

17.02.2020 P129 Rev A Plots 50-54 (Elevations)

17.02.2020 P130 Rev A Plots 56, 69, 70, 110, 111 (Plans and
Elevations)

17.02.2020 P131 Rev A Plots 57-59 (Plans and Elevations)

17.02.2020 P132 Rev A Plots 60-63 (Plans)

17.02.2020 P133 Rev A Plots 60-63 (Elevations)

17.02.2020 P134 Rev A Plots 64-68 (Plans)

17.02.2020 P135 Rev A Plots 64-68 (Elevations)

17.02.2020 P136 Rev A Plot 99 (Plans and Elevations)

17.02.2020 P137 Rev A Plot 75 (Plans and Elevations)

17.02.2020 P138 Rev A Plots 74, 76, 94 & 100 (Plans and
Elevations)

17.02.2020 P139 Rev A Plots 80-91 (Plans)

17.02.2020 P140 Rev A Plots 80-91 (Elevations)

17.02.2020 P142 Rev A Plot 92 (Plans and Elevations)

17.02.2020 P143 Rev A Plots 71, 93 (Plans and Elevations)

17.02.2020 P144 Rev A Plots 95, 98 (Plans and Elevations)

17.02.2020 P145 Rev A Plots 96, 97 (Plans and Elevations)

17.02.2020 P146 Rev A Plot 101 (Plans and Elevations

17.02.2020 P147 Rev A Plots 102-109 (Plans)

17.02.2020 P148 Rev A Plots 102-109 (Elevations)

17.02.2020 P149 Rev A Plots 114-115 (Plans and Elevations)

17.02.2020 P150 Rev A Plots 116-117 (Plans and Elevations)

17.02.2020 P151 Rev A Plots 118-127 (Plans 1of2)

17.02.2020 P152 Rev A Plots 118-127 (Plans 2of2)

17.02.2020 P153 Rev A Plots 118-127 (Elevations)

Page 26

Agenda item number: 6



17.02.2020 P154 Rev A Plots 128-129 (Plans and Elevations)

17.02.2020 P155 Rev A Plots 130, 150, 151 & 163 (Plans and Elevs)

17.02.2020 P156 Rev A Plots 131-132 (Plans and Elevations)

17.02.2020 P157 Rev A Plots 133-135 (Plans and Elevations)

17.02.2020 P158 Rev A Plots 136-137, 182-183, 195-196 (Pl and El)

17.02.2020 P159 Rev A Plot 138 (Plans and Elevations)

17.02.2020 P160 Rev A Plot 139 (Plans and Elevations)

17.02.2020 P161 Rev A Plots 140-143 (Plans and Elevations)

17.02.2020 P162 Rev A Plots 144, 169, 186, 187 & 192 (Pl and El)

17.02.2020 P163 Rev A Plots 145-146 (Plans and Elevations)

17.02.2020 P164 Rev A Plots 147, 228 & 240 (Plans and Elevations)

17.02.2020 P165 Rev A Plots 148, 165 (Plans and Elevations)

17.02.2020 P166 Rev A Plots 160, 161, 171, 243 & 244 (Pl and El)

17.02.2020 P167 Rev A Plots 153-154, 188-189 (Plans and
Elevations)

17.02.2020 P168 Rev A Plots 155-157 (Plans and Elevations)

17.02.2020 P169 Rev A Plots 158-159 (Plans and Elevations)

17.02.2020 P170 Rev A Plot 162 (Plans and Elevations)

17.02.2020 P171 Rev A Plot 164 (Plans and Elevations)

17.02.2020 P172 Rev A 166-167, 190-191, 208-209, 210-211,
214-215

17.02.2020 P173 Rev A Plots 168, 241, 254 (Plans and Elevations)

17.02.2020 P174 Rev A Plot 170 (Plans and Elevations)

17.02.2020 P175 Rev A Plots 149, 152 (Plans and Elevations)

17.02.2020 P176 Rev A Plots 172-181 (Plans)

17.02.2020 P177 Rev A Plots 172-181 (Elevations)

17.02.2020 P178 Rev A Plots 184-185, 193-194, 250-251 (Pl and El)

17.02.2020 P179 Rev A Plots 197-207 (Plans)

17.02.2020 P180 Rev A Plots 197-207 (Elevations)

Page 27

Agenda item number: 6



17.02.2020 P181 Rev A Plots 212, 213, 242 (Plans and Elevations)

17.02.2020 P182 Rev A Plots 216, 249 (Plans and Elevations)

17.02.2020 P183 Rev A Plots 217-218, 252-253 (Plans and
Elevations)

17.02.2020 P184 Rev A Plots 219-220 (Plans and Elevations)

17.02.2020 P185 Rev A Plots 221-227 (Plans)

17.02.2020 P186 Rev A Plots 221-227 (Elevations)

17.02.2020 P187 Rev A Plots 229-230 (Plans and Elevations)

17.02.2020 P188 Rev A Plots 231-234 (Plans and Elevations)

17.02.2020 P189 Rev A Plot 235 (Plans and Elevations)

17.02.2020 P190 Rev A Plots 236-239 (Plans and Elevations)

17.02.2020 P191 Rev A Plots 245-248 (Plans and Elevations)

17.02.2020 P192 Rev A Single Detached Garages

17.02.2020 P193 Rev A Double Detached Garages (1 of 2)

17.02.2020 P194 Rev A Double Detached Garages(2 of 2)

17.02.2020 P195 Rev A Mutiple Detached Garages and Car Barns

17.02.2020 P196 Rev A Multiple Garages, Sub-st, Pumping St &
Cycle

17.02.2020 1000 Rev
PL02

Hard and Soft General Arrangement Plan -
Legend and Specification

17.02.2020 1001 Rev
PL02

Hard and Soft General Arrangement Plan –
Sheet 1 of 12

17.02.2020 1002 Rev
PL02

Hard and Soft General Arrangement Plan –
Sheet 2 of 12

17.02.2020 1003 Rev
PL02

Hard and Soft General Arrangement Plan –
Sheet 3 of 12

17.02.2020 1004 Rev
PL02

Hard and Soft General Arrangement Plan –
Sheet 4 of 12

17.02.2020 1005 Rev
PL02

Hard and Soft General Arrangement Plan –
Sheet 5 of 12

17.02.2020 1006 Rev
PL02

Hard and Soft General Arrangement Plan –
Sheet 6 of 12

17.02.2020 1007 Rev Hard and Soft General Arrangement Plan –

Page 28

Agenda item number: 6



PL02 Sheet 7 of 12

17.02.2020 1008 Rev
PL02

Hard and Soft General Arrangement Plan –
Sheet 8 of 12

17.02.2020 1009 Rev
PL02

Hard and Soft General Arrangement Plan –
Sheet 9 of 12

17.02.2020 1010 Rev
PL02

Hard and Soft General Arrangement Plan –
Sheet 10 of 12

17.02.2020 1011 Rev
PL02

Hard and Soft General Arrangement Plan –
Sheet 11 of 12

17.02.2020 1012 Rev
PL02

Hard and Soft General Arrangement Plan –
Sheet 12 of 12

17.02.2020 1132/TPP/30
0 Rev B

Tree Protection & Arboricultural Method
Statement - Sheet 1 of 3

17.02.2020 1132/TPP/30
1 Rev B

Tree Protection & Arboricultural Method
Statement - Sheet 2 of 3

17.02.2020 1132/TPP/30
2 Rev B

Tree Protection & Arboricultural Method
Statement - Sheet 3 of 3

17.02.2020 180630-015
Rev L

Refuse Collection Points

Reason: To ensure that the development is carried out in accordance with the
approved plans and in the interests of proper planning.

2. No development above ground level shall take place until details of existing and
proposed finished site levels, finished floor and ridge levels of the buildings and
acoustic fence to be erected, and finished external surface along the edge of
the A31 (including slip roads) to the buildings on the southern boundary have
been submitted to and approved in writing by the Local Planning Authority. The
development shall thereafter be constructed in accordance with the approved
details.

Reason: In order to ensure the height of the development is appropriate to the
character of the area. It is considered necessary for this to be a
pre-commencement condition because the management of the construction
needs to be considered before construction commences.

3. No development including groundworks and demolition and no equipment,
machinery or materials shall be brought onto the site for the purposes of the
development until all tree protection measures have been installed in the
positions identified on tree protection plan 1132/TPP/300 REV B, 1132/TPP/301
REV B and 1132/TPP/302 REV B. The tree protection measures shall be
maintained for the course of the development works.

Page 29

Agenda item number: 6



Reason: To protect and enhance the appearance and character of the site and
locality and reduce the risk to protected and retained trees. It is considered
necessary for this to be a pre-commencement condition because the tree
protection measures need to be checked prior to the development commencing
to ensure they are adequately installed.

4. No development shall commence until a site meeting has taken place with the
site manager, the retained consulting arboriculturalist and the Local Planning
Authority Tree Officer to agree the tree protection is installed correctly. This tree
condition may only be fully discharged on completion of the development
subject to satisfactory written evidence of monitoring and compliance by the
pre-appointed consulting arboriculturalist, this will be agreed at the
pre-commencement meeting.

Reason: To protect the trees on site which are to be retained in the interests of
the visual amenities of the locality. It is considered necessary for this to be a
pre-commencement condition because the tree protection measures need to be
checked prior to the development commencing to ensure they are adequately
installed

5. No development shall commence (excluding ground works and construction up
to damp proof course (dpc) and the construction of the access) until details
including plans, have been submitted to and approved by the Local Planning
Authority in writing for the installation of a High Speed wholly Fibre broadband
To The Premises (FTTP) connection to the development hereby approved.
Thereafter, the infrastructure shall be laid out in accordance with the approved
details at the same time as other services during the construction process and
be available for use on the first occupation of each building where practicable or
supported by evidence detailing reasonable endeavours to secure the provision
of FTTP and alternative provisions that been made in the absence of FTTP.

Reason: To ensure that the new development in Guildford is provided with high
quality broadband services and digital connectivity. It is considered necessary
for this to be a pre-commencement condition because the management of
construction traffic needs to be considered before construction commences.

6. No development (including demolition, ground works, vegetation clearance)
shall take place, until the Construction Environmental Management Plan
(CEMP) prepared by Ecology Solutions, dated February 2020 ref:
7780.CEMP(Biodiversity).vf1 has been implemented. The approved Plan shall
be adhered to throughout the construction period.

Reason: To ensure that satisfactory measures are put in place for addressing
potential contamination and ecological issues before and during development
and to maintain local biodiversity.

Page 30

Agenda item number: 6



7. Prior to commencement of development (excluding ground works and
construction up to damp proof course (dpc) and the construction of the access)
a written schedule including source/ manufacturer, texture, colour and finish,
and/or samples of materials to be used externally shall be submitted to and
approved in writing by the Local Planning Authority including details of all:
a) porches;
b) eaves;
c) recess depths; and
d) cills;
e) fenestration details;
f) bricks, tiles and stone; and
g) fascias, soffits and gutters.

with sections, plans and elevations on drawings at a scale of at least 1:20. The
development shall be carried out in accordance with the approved details.

Reason: To ensure that the external appearance of the building is satisfactory.

8. Following the approval of the external materials and before above ground works
take place (excluding ground works and construction up to damp proof course
(dpc) and the construction of the access) a sample panel (not less than one
metre square, showing materials, face bond and pointing) of the external
stonework elevations, shall be constructed on site, inspected and approved in
writing by the Local Planning Authority. The panel shall remain on site until the
completion of the plots with this elevational finish. The works shall thereafter be
carried out in accordance with the approved sample panel.

Reason: To ensure that the appearance of the development is satisfactory.

9. The development shall be implemented in accordance with the mitigation and
enhancement measures in Chapter 5 of the 'Ecological Assessment' prepared
by Ecology Solutions, dated December 2019, ref: 7780.EcoAs.vf and Briefing
Note: Ecology Update prepared by Ecology Solutions ref: 7780: Manor Farm
and thereafter maintained.

Reason: To protect and enhance existing species and habitat on the site in the
future.

10. External lighting shall be installed in accordance with the Sensitive Lighting
Management Plan to comply with 'Bats and Lighting in the UK - Bats and Built
Environment Series and mitigation measures in the 'Ecological Assessment'
prepared by Ecology Solutions, dated December 2019, ref: 7780.EcoAs.vf and
thereafter maintained.

Reason: To prevent adverse impacts on protected species, in particular bats,
resulting from the proposed development works.

Page 31

Agenda item number: 6



11. Prior to the occupation of the 150th dwelling the route in the north west corner
shall be provided to link to the existing cycleway at the end of Grange Road
leading to the roundabout on the Blackwater Relief Road (A31), as shown on
drawing no. P101 rev A (proposed site layout). Public access shall be
maintained in perpetuity.

Reason: To provide pedestrian connectivity to the west and along Grange Road.

12. Prior to first occupation of a dwelling the car parking space and cycle storage for
that unit shall be laid out and made available for use in accordance with the
approved drawing no. 19204 - C118A, for vehicles / cycles to be parked and for
vehicles to turn so that they may enter and leave the site in forward gear.
Thereafter the parking /turning/ storage areas shall be retained and maintained
for their designated purposes.

Reason: In order that the development should not prejudice highway safety nor
cause inconvenience to other highway users.

13. Prior to first occupation of the development hereby approved in accordance with
the landscaping plans and indicative planning schedule (drawings no.s
D2841-FAB-00-XX-DR-L-1000-PL02 - 1013-PL02) full details of:
a) hardstanding surfaces;
b) soft landscaping;
c) tree planting including semi-mature species along the shared boundary to
The Street;
d) boundary treatments including fences and brick walls;
e) hop frames; and
f) implementation schedule

Shall be submitted to and approved in writing by the Local Planning Authority.

The approved landscape scheme (with the exception of planting, seeding and
turfing) shall be implemented in accordance with the approved plans.

Any trees or plants whether new or retained which within a period of 5 years
from the completion of the development die, are removed or become seriously
damaged or diseased shall be replaced in the next planting season with others
of similar size and species in the same place.

Reason: To ensure the provision, establishment and maintenance of an
appropriate landscape scheme and public realm in the interests of the visual
amenities of the locality.

14. Prior to the installation of any boundary treatment to apartment building 1 (plots
60-63) and plots 48-49, details of the method of fixing to the locally listed chalk
wall shall be submitted to and approved in writing by the Local Planning
Authority. The development shall be carried out as approved and thereafter
maintained.

Reason: To protect the non-designated heritage asset.

Page 32

Agenda item number: 6



15. All electric vehicle charging points shall be a fast charge socket (current
minimum requirements - 7 kw Mode 3 with Type 2 connector - 230v AC 32 Amp
single phase dedicated supply).

Reason: To encourage the use of electric cars in order to reduce carbon
emissions and improve air quality.

16. Prior to first occupation, garden fences shall be provided with a 'Hedgehog
Gateway', a 13cm x13cm section of fence cut out at the base and signposting
as detailed in Appendix 1 of the Briefing Note: Ecology Update prepared by
Ecology Solutions ref: 7780: Manor Farm. These shall be maintained in
perpetuity.

Reason: To facilitate the dispersal of Hedgehogs and other small animals and
enhance thee permeability of the new development to wildlife.

17. Prior to the first occupation of the development a certificate demonstrating that
Secured by Design (physical security) has been successfully achieved shall be
submitted to and approved in writing by the Local Planning Authority.

Reason: To ensure that the development is acceptable in terms of crime and
safety.

18. Prior to the occupation of the 150th dwelling the Neighbourhood Equipped Area
for Play (NEAP) shall be laid out in accordance with the scheme approved by
the Local Planning Authority under 18/D/00226/1 and thereafter maintained.

Reason: To ensure the satisfactory provision of children's play space.

19. Works related to the construction of the development hereby permitted,
including works of demolition or preparation prior to building operations, shall
not take place other than between the hours of 0800 and 1800 Mondays to
Fridays and between 0800 and 1330 Saturdays and at no time on Sundays or
Bank or National Holidays.

Reason: To protect the neighbours from noise and disturbance outside the
permitted hours during the construction period.

20. Notwithstanding the provisions of the Town and Country Planning (General
Permitted Development) Order 2015 (or any Order revoking or re-enacting or
amending those Orders with or without modification) any garage or car barn
which has been approved with open sides, fronts or backs shall remain as such
in perpetuity and they shall not be further enclosed in full or in part at any time
and be useable for its designated purpose for car parking.

Page 33

Agenda item number: 6



Reason: To prohibit the unsightly enclosure of the structures and in an ad-hoc
manner, to protect the character and appearance of the development and
ensure that parking provision is maintained to prevent obstruction of the
highway.

21. The development hereby approved shall have 12 affordable rent 1-bed flats
which shall be constructed to meet Building Regulations M4(3)(2)(a) 'wheelchair
accessible dwelling' standards and 48 of the units hereby approved shall be
designed to be meet the Building Regulations 'accessible and adaptable
dwellings' M4(2). These shall include within the design of each wheelchair unit
internal storage space for the storage of mobility scooters/wheelchairs and
associated charging points, where practicable. Thereafter these features shall
be retained and maintained for the life of the development.

Reason: In order to provide a flexible housing stock to meet a wide range of
accommodation needs.

Informatives:
1. This statement is provided in accordance with Article 35(2) of the Town and

Country Planning (Development Management Procedure) (England) Order 2015.
Guildford Borough Council seek to take a positive and proactive approach to
development proposals. We work with applicants in a positive and proactive
manner by:

Offering a pre application advice service
Where pre-application advice has been sought and that advice has been
followed we will advise applicants/agents of any further issues arising during
the course of the application
Where possible officers will seek minor amendments to overcome issues
identified at an early stage in the application process

However, Guildford Borough Council will generally not engage in unnecessary
negotiation for fundamentally unacceptable proposals or where significant
changes to an application is required.

In this case pre-application advice was sought and provided through a planning
performance agreement (PPA) which addressed initial issues, the application has
been submitted in accordance with that advice, however, further issues were
identified during the consultation stage of the application. Officers have worked
with the applicant to overcome these issues. Minor alterations were required to
overcome concerns, these were sought and the applicant agreed to the changes.

2. The applicant is advised that the full details in relation to make and model of the
windows, glazing and ventilation and specification for the acoustic fence referred
to in the Noise Assessment prepared by Ardent Consulting Engineers dated
14.02.20, ref: 180630-02 rev I, will have to be submitted to and approved in writing
under condition 10 of the outline planning permission 16/P/00222.

Page 34

Agenda item number: 6



3. The applicant is advised that a landscape management plan for a minimum period
of 10 years, including long term design objectives, management responsibilities
and maintenance schedules for all landscape areas, will have to be submitted to
and approved in writing under condition 6 of the outline planning permission
16/P/00222, in accordance with the indicative landscape proposals.

4. The applicant is advised that any new village signage would constitute an outdoor
advert and would require consent under The Town and Country Planning (Control
of Advertisements) (England) Regulations 2007.

Officer's Report

Site description.

The application comprises a parcel of land on the north of the A31, Hog’s Back comprising
approximately 13ha of agricultural land.

The site is broadly triangular in shape and is bounded by Grange Road to the north-west, The
Street to the east and by the A31 to the south. The boundaries of the site are generally marked
by hedgerows and trees and currently include no built development.

The site is in the countryside. The site is also within the Black Water Valley strategic open gap.
The site is also within the 254m - 5km zone of influence of the Thames Basin Heaths Special
Protection Area. The land to the east, on the opposite side of The Street is in the Area of Great
Landscape Value (AGLV) and the Surrey Hills Area of Outstanding Natural Beauty (AONB)
further to the east and south.

Proposal

The application seeks approval of the reserved matters application for the outline element of the
hybrid permission (part full and part outline) 16/P/00222 that granted outline permission for
development of up to 254 residential dwellings on 13ha of the site including the creation of an
access point from The Street, creation of a primary route through the site and an emergency
access link from Grange Road, provision of open space including children’s play areas,
sustainable urban drainage systems and green links on the site; and, the change of use from
agricultural land to use as a Suitable Alternative Natural Greenspace (SANG) on 17.7 ha of land
to the east of Tongham Road to serve the proposal and the surrounding area, including access,
pathways and associated landscaping. The current application relates solely to the reserved
matters for the outline component.

The current application seeks approval for the appearance, landscaping, layout and scale of the
development. The application also includes details of the associated car parking, open space,
drainage systems and infrastructure.

Design review panel

Prior to the validation of the application on 10.12.2019, the proposals were taken to the Design
South East, Guildford Design Review Panel (DRP) on 30.10.2019 as part of a pre-application,
planning performance agreement (PPA) between the Council and the developer.

Page 35

Agenda item number: 6



The comments from the DRP are summarised below:

marked improvements from the scheme presented at last review
the development should provide an extension of the village characteristics through building
materials and house types, and the architectural form should better reflect the local
vernacular
the entrance to the site remains undefined, and here the landscape and built form require
revision to provide a distinctive entrance to both the development and Tongham in a wider
context
ensure that the wider design strategy is not dictated by the easement of the gas main
interconnecting the open space throughout the development
a better integration and planning for the new development and communities along the
Grange Road is required and needs to be better facilitated
better defining the linear park and providing it with a sense of purpose that will benefit the
community
the panel consider the hop frame concept proposed at the central area of the site to be an
interesting design motif. However, we recommend reutilising the concept elsewhere in the
site, such as at the site entrance, to allow the reflection of the site’s agricultural history to be
more distinctive
[officer comment: has been included at the entrance and in the green spaces]
the edges of parkland and open space may be threatened by erosion from vehicle parking
tree planting throughout the site is beneficial and the use of larger trees in open spaces,
which will develop larger canopies is a positive move and will relate to the character of
Tongham
the environmental strategy behind the linear park, central to the site, will need to be robust
enough to retain meaning and justification if the easement is no longer required
how the development supports passive solar gain and how this has been considered in the
energy strategy
would like to see the architectural form of Tongham inform the proposal to a greater extent
rather than standard housebuilder block buildings
the strategy for the southern boundary is largely driven by constraints rather than design
considerations
would benefit from a distinct and wholehearted introduction and connection with the
successful elements of local character, built form and density of Tongham
the set back of the dwellings along The Street would detract from the extension of the
character
better response from the development to the crescent of buildings opposite the site
the pumping station at the northern edge of the site will need to be treated appropriately to
minimise visual impact
housing tenures better integrated
adding a connection to the Hogs Back Brewery
further consideration of wayfinding is to aid pedestrian and vehicular movement
architectural treatment has progressed and is more responsive to the local character
more in depth analysis and interpretation is required to capture the qualities and character of
the local vernacular and give greater authenticity to the proposals
garages designed to be more adaptable in future
more rigorous site wide approach to the energy strategy aligned, with Guildford’s Climate
Emergency and zero carbon declaration

The applicant’s responses to the DRP is in a document prepared by OSP Architecture dated 
February 2020.

Page 36

Agenda item number: 6



The reserved matters application includes a layout showing:

The dwelling mix

Market RM
18/P/02461

RM
19/P/02102

Difference SHMA %
req

Provided %
RM
18/P/02461

Provided %
RM
19/P/02102

1 bed flat 4
1 bed flat –
wheelchair

+4 10% 0% 2%

2 bed flat 4
2 bed flat –
wheelchair
2 bed house 41 43

+6 30% 25% 28%

3 bed house 66 72 +6 40% 40% 44%
4 bed house 53 42 -11
5 bed house 5 -5

20% 35% 25%

TOTAL 165 165

Affordable RM
18/P/02461

RM
19/P/02102

Difference SHMA %
req

S106 % req Provided
% RM
18/P/02461

Provided
% RM
19/P/02102

1 bed flat 20 11
1 bed flat –
wheelchair

4 12
-1 40% 27% 27% 27%

2 bed flat 20 18
2 bed flat –
wheelchair

7

2 bed house 11 21

+1 30% 43% 43% 43%

3 bed house 27 27 - 25% 30% 30% 30%
4 bed house
5 bed house

5% 0% 0% 0%

TOTAL 89 89

RM 18/P/02461 RM 19/P/02102
Flats Houses Flats Houses

Market 0% (0) 100% (165) 5% (8) 95% (157)
Affordable 57% (51) 43% (38) 46% (41) 54% (48)

Breakdown:
Market: 65%
Affordable: 35% (60% are to be affordable rented housing units and the remaining 40% are to be
shared ownership housing units.)
[officer comment: as the outline permission was approved before the adoption of policy H2, the
previous requirement secured by a S106 planning obligation shall be provided]
M4(3)(2)(a) ‘wheelchair adaptable’ standard homes: 12 (1 bedroom flats, all affordable rent)
M4(2) ‘accessible and adaptable’ standard homes: 48 (32 shared ownership and 16 affordable
rent)

Details

Density: 19 dwellings per hectare
Density not including open space: 30-40 dwellings per hectare
Allocated parking spaces: 396 of which 12 marked as accessible (exclusive of 118 garages)
Unallocated parking spaces: 10 (for the flats)
Visitor parking spaces: 56

Page 37

Agenda item number: 6



Separate secure cycle storage provided for dwellings without garages.

The application proposes a number of predominantly 2 storey dwellings with some units having
rooms in the roof inclusive of detached, semi-detached and terraces; as well as 5 blocks of flats
2-3 storeys in height and flats of garages (FOGs). The application proposes a Neighbourhood
Equipped Area of Play (NEAP) for children's play space, green link along the gas easement,
enhancement of the green edge around the perimeter, a native buffer and woodland mix along
the southern boundary and wetland in the swales along the northern and western boundaries.

Amendments

Through the process of the application, amended plans were sought to address issues that were
raised in relation to layout and design, parking, housing mix, landscaping, sustainability, noise
mitigation, servicing, ecology and public art.

The applicant states that the amended plans received have resulted in the following:

elevational adjustments including; removing barge boards and reducing fascia boards;
enlarging windows where appropriate, bay windows, storm porches, dormers and refreshing
the appearance of the apartment buildings;
improving positions and relationships between certain plots;
reducing instances of tandem parking;
reduction in carbon emissions of at least 20% measured against the relevant Target
Emission Rate (TER);
fast electric charging points;
update to noise mitigation;
accommodated comments from Recycling and Waste Projects Officer;
precautionary measures relating to reptiles;
a Construction Environment Management Plan (CEMP); and
public art strategy.

Environmental Impact Assessment (EIA) Development

The hybrid application was screened and determined to not be Environmental Impact
Assessment (EIA) Development as was then defined by the Town and Country Planning
(Environmental Impact Assessment) Regulations 2011, as amended (revoked by the Town and
Country Planning (Environmental Impact Assessment) Regulations 2017). This reserved matters
application, does not raise new environmental considerations and does not constitute EIA
development.

Relevant planning history

18/P/02461 – Reserved matters application pursuant to outline application 16/P/00222, allowed
on appeal on 26/01/2018, to consider appearance, landscaping, layout and scale in respect of
the erection of 254 dwellings and associated car parking, open space and infrastructure.

Refused 17/07/2019

Reasons for refusal:

1. The proposed development due to the design approach, layout and appearance fails to take
the opportunities available for improving the character and quality of the area and the way it
functions, shaped by the quality of the landscape.

Page 38

Agenda item number: 6



     The proposals do not achieve the high quality design required to respond to nor reinforce
locally distinctive patterns of development or result in outstanding or innovative designs, which
would help to raise the standard of design more generally in the area. The site layout has
been predominantly dictated by physical and technical constraints, resulting in a townscape
with no expression of locally reflective character or a positive identity through the interpretation
of local vernacular patterns of development, or sympathetic contemporary design. By virtue of
this and the:
a) lack of a focal point at the site entrance;
b) overuse of cladding treatment on ‘gateway buildings’;
c) homogenous appearance due to minor elevational variations of non-place specific design;
d) confused mix and use of materials and architectural detailing on the Zenith apartment
buildings;
e) parking dominated street level design around the southern apartment buildings;
f) poor legibility and resident experience of the site given the lack of variation in built form, plot
or street widths or character;
g) absence of a clear and attractive hierarchy of areas and streets of differentiated spatial
interest and contrasting focus across the development, resulting in an imbedded cul-de-sac
arrangement;
h) poorly defined functionality, connectivity and permeability of the open spaces; and
i) quantum of turning heads and cul-de-sacs would result in a greater number of refuse
collection points and reversing manoeuvres which would affect occupier amenity and
servicing;

This development would not establish an attractive locally resonant sense of place within its
own right or as an extension of Tongham Village.

The submitted Design and Access Statement and Addendum does not provide a sufficient
explanation of principles that could inform the design and layout. This absence of
understanding, analysis or interpretation of local architectural style, character, or context
setting fails to produce a design response adequate for its setting, being unresponsive to what
is special and unique about this site and its situation. The applicant has failed to take the
opportunities identified during the Design Review process to improve the design quality of this
proposal. This would be contrary to policy D1 of the Guildford Borough Local Plan: strategy
and sites (2019), policy G5(4), (5), (7), (9) of the Guildford Borough Local Plan (2003) (as
saved by CLG Direction on 24/09/07), the National Planning Policy Framework (2019) and
guidance in the Planning Practice Guidance, Urban Design Compendium (2000), Surrey
Design (2002) and Guildford Borough Council’s ‘Guidance on the storage and collection of
household waste for new developments’ (July 2017).

2. The proposed housing mix would not meet the range of accommodation needs identified in the
Strategic Housing Market Assessment (SHMA) (2015) and Addendum Report (2017) by virtue
of:
a) only 42% of the proposed affordable homes being houses compared to 100% of the market
homes being houses;
b) the proposed market housing mix deviating from the identified need and the applicant failing
to provide sufficient evidence to justify a departure from this;
c) the affordable units being provided in large clustered groups of 32, 31, 12 and 10;

This would fail to deliver a wide choice of homes, widen opportunities for home ownership and
create sustainable, mixed and balanced communities that are tenure blind and accessible.

Page 39

Agenda item number: 6



 This would be contrary to policy H1 of the Guildford Borough Local Plan: strategy and sites
(2019), the National Planning Policy Framework (2019) and guidance in the Planning Practice
Guidance and Planning Contributions Supplementary Planning Document (2017).

16/P/00222 - Hybrid planning application for;

a) Outline application for the development of up to 254 residential dwellings on 13.15 ha of the
site including the creation of an access point from The Street, creation of a primary route through
the site and an emergency access link from Grange Road, provision of open space including
children's play areas, sustainable urban drainage systems and green links on the site. (Matters
for approval: Access with all other matters reserved)

b) Full planning permission for the change of use from agricultural land to use as a Suitable
Alternative Natural Greenspace (SANG) on 17.7ha of land to the east of Tongham Road to serve
the proposal and the surrounding area, including access, pathways and associated landscaping.

Refused 17/10/2016, Allowed on appeal 28/01/2018

The Council has also received a number of applications to discharge conditions attached to the
outline consent, this includes:

Condition 5 – archaeology – partially agreed (24/05/2019)
Condition 6 - Landscape and Ecological Management Plan - agreed (13/08/2019)
Condition 7 - Public Open Space and Recreation Plan – agreed (13/08/2019)
Condition 8 - Construction Transport Management Plan (CTMP) - agreed (24/05/2019)
Condition 10 – noise mitigation – agreed (13/08/2019)
Condition 11 - energy efficiency – to be re-submitted
Condition 12 – SANG provision – to be re-submitted
Condition 13 – drainage - partially agreed (13/08/2019)
Condition 15 – foul drainage - to be re-submitted
Condition 18 - parking - agreed (24/05/2019)
Condition 19 - electric charging points – to be re-submitted
Condition 20 – travel plan - agreed (13/08/2019)
Condition 21 – piling methods - to be re-submitted
Condition 22 - SANG Information Pack - agreed (24/05/2019)
Condition 26 – SANG archaeology - partially agreed (24/05/2019)
Condition 27 – SANG Construction Transport Management Plan (CTMP) - agreed (24/05/2019)
Condition 30 – SANG cycle parking - agreed (24/05/2019)
Condition 31 – SANG movement prioritisation - pending consideration
Condition 32 - SANG car park management plan - pending consideration
Condition 33 – SANG soil handling – pending consideration
Condition 34 – SANG landscaping - agreed (24/05/2019)
Condition 36 – SANG directional signage - agreed (24/05/2019)

These matters are not for consideration as part of this application. The assessment of details
submitted under planning conditions are normally dealt with under delegated authority.

Consultations

Statutory consultees

Surrey County Council Highway Authority: No objection. Subject to complying with conditions on
the outline planning permission (16/P/00222).

Page 40

Agenda item number: 6



Surrey County Council Lead Local Flood Authority: No further comments, as the surface water
drainage for this site is being dealt with under a separate discharge of planning conditions
application.

Thames Water: No objection. Further details required in relation to foul water discharge. Should
the applicant subsequently seek a connection to discharge surface water into the public network
in the future then we would consider this to be a material change to the proposal, which would
require an amendment to the application at which point we would need to review our position.
[officer comment: conditions 13, 14 and 15 of the outline approval 16/P/00222 requires these
details]

Internal consultees

Housing Advice Manager: has made the following comments:
the resubmitted proposal reflects more accurately the need reflect in the housing needs
register
satisfied with the increase in the number of 2 bedroom affordable houses as this is the
greatest need amongst families waiting for housing

Environmental Health: No objection. The mitigation measures and noise levels in the noise
assessment submitted pursuant to condition 10 of 16/P/00222 and in the noise report are
acceptable, further details on make and model of the windows, glazing and ventilation would be
required. Rapid charge points of 22kW or faster should be installed.

Waste and Recycling: no objection and have made the following comments:
a bin storage area that can accommodate 3-4x 240L wheeled bins for all properties with
4+ bedroom houses having space for 4-5x 240L bins
Any properties that do not have rear access or a garden should have a storage area to
the front of the property
Stores to flats would be large enough for the required capacity and give scope to increase
capacity should policy or the need arise
road layout has been designed to our vehicle to travel around in forward gear while
minimising reversing and turning
There are a few collection points that operatives would have a drag distance greater than
5m, where this cannot be eliminated the roadway should not be obstructed by parked cars
and paths wide enough

Parks and Countryside: has made the following comments:
play area satisfactory
details of supplier for on-going maintenance
[officer comment: playground equipment approved under condition 7 of 16/P/00222]

Tree Officer: no objection and suggests a condition for full details of all soft landscaping and has
a landscape maintenance schedule for at least 10 years and, has made the following comments:

satisfied with the proposed trees to be removed, and that those retained would be
adequately protected during all phases of the development
supportive of the removal of the linear group of Lombardy Poplar trees adjacent to The
Street, with appropriate tree replacement planting is proposed for this area
Across the entire site, over 300 new trees are proposed, which more that mitigates the
loss of part of the current tree stock.

Page 41

Agenda item number: 6



Non-statutory consultees

Environment Agency: unable to provide comments on this application, are not a statutory
consultee for reserved matters applications. Take account of any conditions, informatives or
advice that we provided in our response to the outline application.

Surrey Wildlife Trust: No objection, suggest conditions in relation to construction ecology
management plan (CEMP), external lighting, swift nest boxes and footpaths around the badger
sett.

Surrey Police: has made the following comments:
consideration is given to requiring a Secure by Design accreditation is achieved
the canopy of the trees within the development should have a minimum clearance
between the ground and the lower canopy of 2 metres, to allow for natural surveillance
across the development.
ground covering plants should be kept to low level to allow for natural surveillance across
the development.

Waverley Borough Council: No response.

Hampshire County Council: No response.

Parish Council

Tongham Parish Council: No response

Farnham Town Council: object and have raised the following matters:
lack of provision for infrastructure
highway capacity at the junction with the A3
highway safety on The Street
impact on air quality from queuing vehicles

Third party comments
4 individuals have objected. The concerns raised are summarised below:

impact of traffic on existing highway network
[officer comment: highway improvement works were agreed under the outline planning
permission]
loss of parking on The Street
lack of new infrastructure proposed
lack of homes suitable for first-time buyers
EIA development
[officer comment: this did not constitute EIA development when the outline application was
screened and the reserved matters does not either]

No letters of support have been received.

Planning policies
The following policies are relevant to the determination of this application.

National Planning Policy Framework (NPPF)
National Planning Policy Framework (NPPF):
Chapter 2. Achieving sustainable development
Chapter 4. Decision-making

Page 42

Agenda item number: 6



Chapter 5. Delivering a sufficient supply of homes
Chapter 8. Promoting healthy and safe communities
Chapter 9. Promoting sustainable transport
Chapter 11. Making effective use of land
Chapter 12. Achieving well designed places
Chapter 14. Meeting the challenge of climate change, flooding and coastal change
Chapter 15. Conserving and enhancing the natural environment
Chapter 16. Conserving and enhancing the historic environment

Guildford Borough Local Plan: strategy and sites (LPSS) 2019:
The Guildford Borough Local Plan: Strategy and Sites was adopted by Council on 25 April 2019.
The Plan carries full weight as part of the Council’s Development Plan. The Local Plan 2003
policies that are not superseded are retained and continue to form part of the Development Plan
(see Appendix 8 of the Local Plan: strategy and sites for superseded Local Plan 2003 policies).

S1 Presumption in favour of sustainable development
H1 Homes for all
H2 Affordable homes
P4 Flooding, flood risk and groundwater protection zones
P5 Thames Basin Heaths Special Protection Area
D1 Place shaping
D2 Climate change, sustainable design, construction and energy
D3 Historic environment
ID3 Sustainable transport for new developments
ID4 Green and blue infrastructure
A31 Land to the south and east of Ash and Tongham

South East Plan 2009:
NRM6 Thames Basin Heath Special Protection Area

Guildford Borough Local Plan 2003 (as saved by CLG Direction 24 September 2007):   
G1 (3), (8), (11), (12) General Standards of Development
G5 (2), (3), (4), (5),
(7), (8), (9)

Design Code

HE4 New Development Which Affects the Setting of a Listed Building
NE4 Species Protection
NE5 Development Affecting Trees, Hedges and Woodlands
R2 Recreational Open Space Provision in Relation to Large New

Residential Developments

Planning Practice Guidance
National Design Guide

Supplementary planning documents:
Surrey County Council Vehicular and Cycle Parking Guidance 2018
Planning Contributions SPD 2017
Thames Basin Heaths Special Protection Area Avoidance Strategy 2017
Guidance on the storage and collection of household waste for new developments 2017
The Surrey Hills Management Plan 2014 – 2019
Sustainable Design and Construction SPD 2011
Guildford Landscape Character Assessment 2007

Page 43

Agenda item number: 6



Vehicle Parking Standards SPD 2006
Residential Design SPG 2004
Surrey Design 2002
Urban Design Compendium 2000

Planning considerations

With the adoption of the LPSS, this site is no longer designated as Countryside beyond the
Green Belt (CBGB).

This is a reserved matters application following the allowing of the appeal (16/P/00222) for outline
planning permission in 2018, granted prior to the adoption of the LPSS and therefore the
principle of the development has been established. In addition to this, the LPSS has allocated this
site under policy A31. The site would form part of the extended Ash and Tongham urban area.
Matters of access have already been established, this would include the:

priority junction to The Street
re-alignment of The Street and the lay-by
main vehicular and pedestrian access from The Street
an emergency access to Grange Road

These were approved at outline stage and are not to be reassessed again as part of this
application. The principle of the development of the site for up to 254 homes is also not to be
revisited as part of this application.

The conditions attached to the outline consent also required details of: sustainable travel;
archaeology; ecological mitigation and enhancement measures; open space and play space;
construction management; new access; noise mitigation; sustainable energy; drainage; highway
mitigation and parking.

These matters are to be assessed and agreed through the submission of details pursuant to
these planning conditions and do not form part of the assessment of this, reserved matters
application.

In relation to NPPF paragraph 11, the Government’s latest published Housing Delivery Test
indicates that Guildford’s 2018 measurement is 75%. For the purposes of NPPF footnote 7, this
is therefore greater than the threshold set out in paragraph 215 (25%). In addition to this on
01.11.2019 the Council published an updated Land Availability Assessment (LAA). This
demonstrates that the Council has a five-year land supply position of 6.84 years with the
appropriate buffer of 20% in accordance with footnote 39 of the NPPF.

The relevant considerations in respect of this application are whether the layout, scale,
appearance and landscaping of the development is acceptable in planning terms and having
regard to the following matters:

the layout of the development and the scale and appearance of the buildings
house types and tenure mix
the impact of the development on the character of the surrounding area
the impact on the heritage assets
the layout of the informal and formal open space
the impact on residential amenity
the quantum and layout of the parking
the highway layout
cycle and bin storage
landscaping and trees

Page 44

Agenda item number: 6



ecology and biodiversity
legal agreement requirements

The layout of the development and the scale and appearance of the buildings

Policy background
Para. 124 of the NPPF states that, “Good design is a key aspect of sustainable development,
creates better places in which to live and work and helps make development acceptable to
communities.” Para. 127-131 then go on to set out the considerations in decision-making. The
PPG in its design guidance provides advice on the key points to take into account on design;
well-designed new or changing, remodelling, infill or extension projects for existing places should:

be functional;
support mixed uses and tenures;
include successful public spaces;
be adaptable and resilient;
have a distinctive character;
be attractive; and
encourage ease of movement.

(Paragraph: 015 Reference ID: 26-015-2014030)

In the introduction to LPSS policy D1: Place-making (para. 4.5.1) sets out the Borough’s vision,
which is consistent with the NPPF:

“The design of the built environment has a direct effect upon how places are used. The
relationship between buildings, spaces and landscape as well as detailed design and materials
are all relevant factors. Good design will influence how people move around our settlements, how
they interact and how places make people feel. We place a high value on the importance of good
design in the built environment and making places better for people. It is important and
fundamentally affects people’s lives on a day to day basis.”

Policy D1 is a strategic design policy which details, key aspects of urban design including the
creation of distinctive local character, safe, connected and efficient streets, a network of green
spaces and public places, fosters crime prevention, access, inclusion, and other factors designed
to support healthy communities. These objectives will allow the Council to achieve development
that has a properly founded, locally distinctive sense of place and relates well to the surrounding
built and natural environment.

The saved policies in G5 of the 2003 LP are a design code, those parts of the policy that have
not been superseded by the LPSS remain relevant, until more detailed design policies are
released. G5 also states that regard should be given to the Surrey Design Guide as a strategic
document, which focuses on design principles.

Design and access statement (DAS)
In the ‘Vision’ (page 4-5) of Manor Farm DAS, December 2019, the applicant sets out 12
concepts and states that “the scheme will use a variety of dwelling types and create spaces to
encourage a mixed community at different life stages…the proposed environment will create a
series of spaces that can be used by all and are sustainable to accommodate future needs.
The proposed scheme seeks to deliver opportunities for people to lead healthier lives and to
enable residents to become an integrated part of the social community within the village. The
proposed network of green spaces and the variety of residential house types will all help to
achieve a strategy for healthy placemaking.”

The DAS then details the existing site and context, before developing a design framework, the
development of the proposals and the final design, landscaping and access.

Page 45

Agenda item number: 6



The historical context analysis shows a chronology of development from pre-1874 to the modern
day, local facilities and amenities, movement corridors (pedestrians, cyclists and vehicles), a
recognition of neighbourhood institutions, focal points and landmarks, landscape setting
(including wider views, ecology, habitats and trees.

It is acknowledged that a detailed study has been undertaken to understand the local built and
natural environment.

The addendum to the DAS provides a detailed response to the amendments that have been
made (page 6-27). These modifications have lifted the quality of the built environment proposed
to create a better place to live, taking into account how people use and interact with public and
private spaces.

Layout
The DAS (page 56) identifies these physical and technical constraints:

Gas main corridor
View corridors
Access position (as approved)
Topography
Existing copse and boundary trees
Required buffer to badger sett
Requirement for Surface Water Drainage provision
Noise from surrounding transport infrastructure
Overhead electricity cable diversions – as underground easements

These are the identifiable determinants of the layout. The proposals follow these simple facts on
the ground that operate as informers of the plan. Layout principles are required to be
demonstrated in the DAS to show how layout concepts have been identified in response to the
context of the site.

One of the key issues is the noise from the A31, in order to achieve the required noise level
required under condition 10 of the outline permission, dwellings have been positioned further into
the site to increase the separation distance from the A31. By positioning parking areas and the
estate road to the south of the properties. Similarly, the properties on the northern boundary are
located further into the site as the SuDS basin is positioned in the area to the north. Then
wherever possible, dwellings are arranged in clusters around central garden areas such that the
buildings shelter these gardens. High ridge garages and car barns, with closed backs and sides,
in these positions provide almost continuous screening around garden areas. As a result, the
higher density and scale of built form is to the southern edge rather than the northern edge
adjoining the existing village as would traditionally be found. However, as this is to ensure that
the amenity of occupiers is safeguarded, this is acceptable. No objection has been raised to this
element of the layout from Environmental Health.

The gas easement is a very linear route and is also a viewing corridor, above ground by having
the main spine road turn to the west below the NEAP, this has broken down its linear alignment
which was a matter raised by the DRP and would create a subtler green way.

The DRP commented on the need to have a coherent north-south green connection by
interconnecting the open spaces. This has been done and now it is possible to navigate along
formal and informal routes from the copse to the pedestrian cycle access on Grange Road on
green routes, to open up the informal and formal open spaces.

Page 46

Agenda item number: 6



The site has been developed as a number of character areas the key features of the layout of
these spaces is assessed below:

‘The Street’ frontage
The buildings would be set back from The Street with a footway in front, to avoid a parallel road
that would result in a hard standing dominated frontage. There would be a gap between the
building to allow an east-west axis to the brewery site through the development allowing for a
desire line where the existing field gate is located.

The buildings would have a traditional appearance with chimneys, full hip and gable ends and
decorative tile hanging, in this prominent location and would follow the rhythm of semi-detached
and short terrace rows visible in Tongham and The Street.

The site entrance would have green spaces either side, reflecting the angular arrangement of the
crescent houses opposite. There would be hop frames and a new village sign as this area would
form the new gateway into Tongham village. There would also be connectivity with the PROW
from the east.

Green edges
This is around the SuDS features to the north and west and around the woodland copse. As their
front aspect would be onto these spaces this would afford natural surveillance. There would be
layby parking on the opposite side of the road for visitors and deliveries and green amenity land
at the end of the blocks for softer edges. The grain is looser along the northern edge where
development along this part of Grange Road is sparser, so would respect the context of
development.

The substation and pump station would be in the boundary, separated by the secondary road and
with the set back from the road frontages and scale of the enclosures would not appear
prominent.

East-west axis
This follows the road of the main spine road and the secondary route to the frontage with the
formal community space in the middle. This forms a viewing corridor, providing a visual and
pedestrian route to the brewery and also to the western edge. With pockets for landscaping and
squares and whilst a linear route, the route is not straight, and the buildings have staggered
distances to the frontage for a more rural appearance.

Southern frontage (A31 edge)
Due to the A31 and the trees, the grain is tighter and denser for the reasons explained above.
There is a more continuous built form of a greater scale. The buildings would turn the corner and
the flats would be dual aspect.

The parking courts would be accessible though archways for visual interest and there would be
clear and legible entrances and routes from the parking areas.

Appearance

Housing design
The buildings along the frontage of The Street would have a tile hanging which would wrap
entirely around the first floor. Tile hanging and stone elevations would also be a feature of marker
buildings on corner junctions, this would create visual interest and relate well to the local
vernacular.

Page 47

Agenda item number: 6



The use of roof tiles would respect the traditional buildings in this older part of the village. The
plans indicatively show two colours in a concrete tile, the final materials specification, would be
secured by a submission of details.

The elevations would include architectural detailing on the roof verges, small fascia boards
integrated with the gutter, header courses, bay windows, quarry tile cills, porches, pattern to tile
hangings, chimneys and narrow cheeks to dormer windows. These features would enhance the
appearance of the building, add interest and ensure that there would be lightness.

The apartment buildings would also have these features including oriel windows, half dormers,
full height projecting bays, enlarged openings, including Juliette balconies and catslide roofs.
Whilst large scale buildings the detailing would ensure that they would not be featureless and
would contribute to the streetscene.

Side elevations facing roads would either turn the corner or have windows, for landings so that
there would not be featureless elevations

The FOGS would either be standalone or be adjoined to an apartment building, these would allow
a continuation of the built form, surveillance and offer housing choice.

There is a variation of roof forms with the main roofs having a range of full hip, half hip and gable
ends, varying eaves levels, then projecting bays, chimneys and dormers on some buildings. This
adds interest whilst there would also be some continuity in the design approach.

Garages and parking
A majority of houses include separate though generally attached private garages. Tandem
parking features in the development, although it is not a dominant feature; this has to be
balanced against the space created for green strip planting and front gardens. Therefore, this
would be acceptable in this instance.

Where possible the larger dwellings would have car parking spaces next to front entrances rather
that at the end of the garden. Where this is not possible (due to the impact on garden sizes)
pedestrian routes have been defined. So, whilst it is not possible to eliminate longer carry
distances, this has been minimised.

There would be on-street parking, which would be mostly provided as unallocated visitor parking.
The formalisation of these spaces would be of benefit to protect the landscaping, given these
areas could be damaged by informal parking. This would also have the effect on increasing street
activity and providing spaces for delivery vehicles. Where there are verges, the use of short
bollards would discourage informal parking to protect the green verges.

Street design
Dual footpaths on either side of the roadway would be applied on the primary spine road and
secondary road with a more informal arrangement with a shared surfaces approach on tertiary
routes. This strengthens the roadway hierarchy and reduces the hardstanding surfaces for softer
landscaping edges in the streetscene in this semi-rural location.

The area around the apartment buildings along the southern edge would have car parking
spaces in courts, accessed through an archway. This would ensure that car parking would not
dominate the street.

All of the houses would have a front garden and the apartment buildings would have a green strip
to the street.

Page 48

Agenda item number: 6



This is a locally distinctive feature of surrounding development and has been incorporated into
the layout of the sign so that properties would have a private threshold and green edge, which
would soften the streetscene.

Legibility
For wayfinding the streets would differ in their character and materials for distinction (as
illustrated on pages 142-151 of the DAS).

There would be a series of ‘squares’ at key junctions comprising raised tables, and pedestrian
crossing points and trees would be used to inform the street characters with larger trees on the
primary road, smaller trees on the secondary routes and smaller and fruit trees on the tertiary
routes. There would also be variations to the verges, footways and planting becoming more
informal.

This would ensure the as you move through the site there is differentiation and the junctions
would be clear nodes to help with navigation.

Sustainability measures
The applicant sets out these proposals in the submitted Sustainability Note in summary:

Water use will be reduced to 110 litres per person per day (reduced from building
Regulations requirement of 125 litres per person per day).
Water efficient fixtures.
Rainwater butts will be provided for all plots for watering gardens to reduce mains water
usage.
All houses will have one fast charge socket and 20% of available parking spaces for flats
will be fitted with a fast change socket.
Recycling of materials on site.
High quality and durable materials and high standards of insulation.
In appropriate locations, larger than average windows.
PVCu double glazed windows and doors 
Air tightness standards will be on average a 50% improvement over Building Regulations
Heating and hot water will be supplied to the scheme through highly efficient Mains gas
Combi boilers of Energy-related Products (ErP) A-rating for heat and water, supported by
programmer and room thermostats.
PV panels solution to the dwelling roofs with the best suiting orientations offering a 20%
reduction in carbon emissions.

The energy strategy for the site is covered under condition 11 of the outline planning permission,
and they would exceed the 10% requirement as the development would achieve at least a 20%
reduction in carbon emissions.

There would also be fast electric vehicle charging points, the details of which are required under
condition 19 of 16/P/00222. However, this condition does not specify that these would be fast
(7kw) charge points, therefore, a condition to require this shall be required.

Having regard to all of the above it is concluded that the design approach, layout and appearance
would establish a sense of place and present a well-connected extension to Tongham Village.
Therefore, the development would meet the objectives of policy D1 of the Guildford Borough
Local Plan: strategy and sites (2019), policy G5(4), (5), (7), (9) of the Guildford Borough Local
Plan (2003) (as saved by CLG Direction on 24/09/07) and the NPPF.

Page 49

Agenda item number: 6



House types and tenure mix

The proposed residential units would comprise 42 different house/flat types although there is
some cohesion to the architectural styles, with some variation in the architectural detailing and
scale of the buildings. The tenure split is set out in the tables in the proposals section and there
would be a range of both market and affordable house types.

Policy H1 of the LPSS is not prescriptive and instead seeks a mix of tenure, types and sizes of
dwelling, which shall be guided by the Strategic Housing Market Assessment (SHMA) and
appropriate to the site size, characteristics and location. Policy H2(1) states: “…the Council will
work … to increase the number of affordable homes in the borough to contribute to meeting
identified needs.” On larger site allocations such as this, which would be creating their own new
community, the balance needs to align more closely with the housing need identified in the
SHMA.

The proposed affordable housing mix would meet the requirements in the legal agreement for the
outline permission, 16/P/00222.

To address the previous reason for refusal the applicant has made the following changes:

The affordable units:
increase in the percentage of houses from 43% to 54% (10 houses);

The market units:
decrease in the percentage of houses from 100% to 95% - 8x 1 and 2 bed flats
increase in the percentage of 2-bed units from 25% to 28% - 6 additional units
decrease in the percentage of 4-5 bed houses from 35% to 25% - 16 fewer units

1 and 2 bed units are expected to be delivered in a town/district centre location or adjoining a
transport hub and 2-4 beds units delivered in the out of town settlements. This is an out of town
location, where there is greater demand for: family units, downsizers, first time buyers and
relations of people who have grown up in the area. The proposal would meet the demand for a
range of 2-4 bed homes by these types of groups. Therefore, whilst the market housing would
deviate from the guideline SHMA requirements, this would be within tolerable limits.

The development also has 35% affordable housing units in accordance with the planning
obligation for 16/P/00222, which equates to 89 units and this would significantly contribute to the
affordable housing requirement in the surrounding area. The affordable units would be
concentrated around the flatted blocks along the southern edge and along the frontage of the
street, with other clusters within the site. Whilst there would be some clustering the apartments
would adjoining market housing and the design would appear the same as the market units. With
the provision of market flats the affordable units are now less distinguishable from the market
units.

The scheme now includes 2 market apartment buildings and a greater number of 2 bed
affordable units, this has shifted the balance of flats to houses so that the scheme would have a
more balanced housing type.

LPSS policy H1(4) requires that on residential development sites of 25 homes or more, 10% of
new homes would be required to meet Building Regulations M4 (2) category 2 standard (to be
‘accessible and adaptable dwellings’), and 5% of new homes would be required to meet Building
Regulations M4 (3) category 3 (‘wheelchair user dwellings’). This requires 25 homes to be
‘accessible and adaptable dwellings’ and 13 to be ‘wheelchair user dwellings’.

Page 50

Agenda item number: 6



The applicant has confirmed that 48 of the affordable homes would meet the M4 (2) category 2
standard (to be ‘accessible and adaptable dwellings’) and 12 flats would be built to comply with
M4 (3) category 3 (‘wheelchair user dwellings’). This would be 1 unit short of the requirement of
policy H1(4).

The Housing Strategy and Enabling Manager has previously confirmed that the current need
from the disability panel is for 3 bedroom homes; the proposed wheelchair units would not meet
the current identified need, as this would be provided in 1 and 2 bedroom flats and not 3 bedroom
units. However, the Housing Strategy and Enabling Manager, has confirmed that the lesser
M4(3)(2)(a) standard would be appropriate for the 1 and 2 bed wheelchair units and on balance
would meet future housing needs.

LPSS policy H1(9) states that on developments over 100 units 5% of the total homes shall be
available for sale as self-build and custom housebuilding. The applicant argues that the outline
planning permission was granted prior to the adoption of the LPSS and the S106 legal agreement
does not secure such units, including relevant obligations that would otherwise be necessary to
facilitate the delivery of self-build units (such as securing the number of plots and the timing of
their delivery). Furthermore, a design code / design strategy to facilitate the self-build / custom
building has also not been established through the outline process, and so the necessary
framework would not be in place to enable delivery of the self-build units without the need of a
further planning application / submission. It is accepted that this was not required at the outline
stage. Therefore, given the status of the outline planning permission as a material consideration,
in this instance this requirement shall not be sought.

The proposal would meet a range of accommodation needs identified and so would create a
sustainable, mixed and balanced community. This would comply with policy H1 of the Guildford
Borough Local Plan: strategy and sites (2019) and the NPPF.

The impact of the development on the character of the surrounding area

The application site is located on the edge of the urban area on the approach to Tongham. The
Street has a semi-rural appearance, with limited formal footways and grass verges and Grange
Road is a narrower rural lane with no footways. There is a vegetative screen along the site
boundaries, these act to screen the site and give it a sense of enclosure. There is also a low
stone wall along nearly the whole length of the shared boundary with the roads.

The green edges (between 8m-35m) to The Street and Grange Road with enhanced planting
would ensure that the built form including the houses and roads would not be unduly prominent.
When seen from the main highways this would enable a transitional buffer from the more
intensive form of development proposed to the semi-rural surrounding area.

There is a banked verge from the slip roads and A31, Hog’s Back along the southern boundary,
the proposed site level is lower than the road level and may require some changes in land levels
to make it flatter. The illustrative section FF (page 140 of the DAS), shows that the site boundary
is on the inside edge of the tree belt and there would be a gap of between 26m-40m from the
elevations of buildings on the southern edge to the roadway of the A31. Whilst there would be a
difference in levels and intervening gap, the roofscape of the development would be visible
especially in the winter months. The increase in the built form this would be broken up by the
variations in the roofscape and to reduce their dominance enhanced hedgerow and planting
would soften that development edge and will be secured by planning conditions.

Page 51

Agenda item number: 6



The site is on the southern fringe of Tongham and under site allocation A31 in the LPSS, it would
form an extension. Given the scale of the proposed development, planning guidance suggests it
could establish its own identity and character, in much the same way as can be seen in other
parts of Ash and Tongham that have been developed at different times. The proposal includes
basic principles of good place making, reinforcing local characteristics following a details
assessment of the character of the area, so that it would be able to successfully integrate with
Tongham. The Design Review Panel reviewed the proposal including evolving Design and
Access Statement (DAS), and suggested a more in-depth analysis and interpretation was
required to capture the qualities and character of the local vernacular and give greater
authenticity to the proposal and that there was an understanding of the local character and form.
The proposal’s response may lack some authenticity, although the layout and connectivity would
allow for an extension of the settlement.

The impact on the heritage assets

Statutory provisions:

Section 66(1) of the Planning (Listed Building and Conservation Areas) Act 1990 states that ‘In
considering whether to grant planning permission for development which affects a listed building
or its setting, the local planning authority or, as the case may be, the Secretary of State shall
have special regard to the desirability of preserving the building or its setting or any features of
special architectural or historic interest which it possesses.’

NPPF provisions:

The NPPF states that heritage assets should be conserved in a manner appropriate to their
significance. Chapter 16 of the National Planning Policy Framework at para 190 sets out that the
local planning authority should identify and assess the particular significance of any heritage
asset…They should take this assessment into account when considering the impact of a
proposal on a heritage asset, to avoid or minimise conflict between the heritage asset’s
conservation and any aspect of the proposal.

Paras 192-202 sets out the framework for decision making in planning applications relating to
heritage assets and this application takes account of the relevant considerations in these
paragraphs.

These are the adjoining heritage assets:

Barn: 20 yards south west of Manor Farm House, opposite side of The Street, Grade II - Late c17
restored in c20. Timber framed on brick and cement plinth, weatherboard cladding, plain tiled
roof with half-hipped ends. Rectangular, 5 framed bays. Double doors to south end. Queen post
roof with arched braces and some diagonal bracing to sides.

Dovecot and Barn: 20 yards to east of Manor Farm House, The Street, Grade II - Late c17 with
c19 extensions. Coursed sandstone with red and blue brick angle quoins, hipped plain tiled roof
with central weathervane. Barn to the east. Single storey with gable.

Grange Farm Barn: on the opposite site of Grange Road, Grade II - converted for commercial
use. The barn dates from c1600 and was altered in C18th. This is a timber framed barn on a
brick plinth covered in weatherboarding (some tarred) with tiled roof, comprising 7 bays with aisle
to one side and a central waggon entrance.

This has an has an aesthetic value due to its appearance and historic value associated with
farming and hop growing activities in this part of Tongham.

Page 52

Agenda item number: 6



The barn complexes on The Street and Grange Road are read as a group value, with the
associated farmyard and on Grange Road the enclosing walls that show a common relationship
and with the related farmhouses. Due to the intervening road on The Street, this creates a natural
break and the proposed frontage buildings due to their scale and form would not compete with
the bard timber boarded barn. The heritage assets in Grange Road are set further away and
separated from the site by the main farmhouse. There would be a change in relationships,
however, the residential development would not encroach on the listed building and the east-west
viewing corridor through the site and north-south greenway would provide a visual focus and
routes to these buildings, as may have historically existed.

No material harm to the setting of the designated heritage asset has been identified and having
due regard to Section(s) 66 of the Planning (Listed Building and Conservation Area) Act 1990
permission should be granted.

Paragraph 197 of the NPPF identifies that the effect on the significant of a non-designated
heritage asset should be taken into account when determining an application. This includes
applications that directly or indirectly affect non-designated heritage assets. A balanced
judgement will be required having regard to the scale of any harm or loss caused and the
significance of the heritage asset.

This includes Manor Farm Barns, (part of the Manor Farm Business Centre), set back from The
Street, comprising 3 co-joined barns dating from the mid C19th and a further barn to the south of
the farmhouse. Now used as a brewery. Part two and part single storey, largely brick elevations
with plain clay tiled roofs. The building on the right has a gable end onto the yard with a squared
chalk clunch elevation and brick dressings. Timber casement windows and larger openings have
white timber boarded doors

Two barns on the opposite site of Grange Road, the farmhouse and the walls both sides of
Grange Road are Locally Listed. The barns and walls have a group value and have a traditional
appearance dating from the C18th and C19th, when they were in joint ownership with the
farmhouse. The house has a date on the front door of 1731, and is an attractive farmhouse, the
traditional features on the exterior have been retained however, the interior has been extensively
renovated. The building has some grandeur for this period, and this can be attributed the farm
being owned by Waverley Abbey, the earliest records show there was a farm on the site in the
C12th. After the Reformation, it reverted to secular ownership.

The chalk walls to the former Manor House have a group value, on The Street which was
demolished in the mid 1970's and redeveloped for the Manor House flats.

There is also a low stone wall all around the edge of the former hop field, this is visible in parts
although largely obscured by overgrowth. This has a historic link to the former hop growing
activities.

The significance of the farmhouse, barns and walls have value in their groups on Grange Road
and The Street and as with the statutory listed buildings a historic association with developments
in the area including agriculture and the church. These features, due to their age, appearance
and aesthetic, show this part of Tongham village to be part of its historic core. The application
site adjoins the farmhouse in Grange Road and the walls to the demolished Manor House, the
gaps to the buildings and as the site would in some way have a clear identity as residential
development would not encroach on these features and whilst the village would be extended and
there would be a contrast between the new and old buildings.

Page 53

Agenda item number: 6



The proposed layout, connectivity and appearance of the building would enable integration. A
condition to secure further details of any fixings to the locally listed chalk wall should be secured
by condition, so that this feature would not be harmed by boundary treatments. So, there would
be no harm to the significance of the non-designated heritage assets.

The layout of the informal and formal open space

The NPPF recognises the open spaces form part of the social objective of delivering sustainable
development. Chapter 8 of the NPPF states how this enhances the sustainability of communities
and residential environments.
Policy D1 includes (6) safe, connected and efficient streets and (7) network of green spaces and
public spaces.
Saved policy G5(9) describes how a high standard of landscape design ensures integration of
development into existing town and landscapes.

The layout proposed includes large areas of open space which includes a sports pitch, children's
play space for a NEAP, wetland along the swales, linear open space along the easement for the
gas pipeline, green edges as open space, maintained amenity space and woodland.

The applicant has prepared a landscape chapter in the DAS, identifying green corridors to inform
the structure of the development, movement strategy for vehicles and pedestrians and identifying
active and passive open space.

As a result, the following landscape strategy has evolved creating these features and character
areas:

Site entrance
This comprises the shared access from The Street and the road frontage to this road. This would
form the new gateway entrance into the village of Tongham.

There would be a village sign and segregated footway, with a raised table interspersed with
landscaping and structural tree planting. As buildings would be set back this would create a soft
entrance. The proposed house fronting the street would be set back to allow room for a footway
and structural replanting to replace the Poplar trees.

The landscaping would be the predominant feature and would not be hardstanding dominated so
that it would have a rural appearance as you move in and out of this main node into the village.

Linear park ‘Greenway’
This would be in 2 parts either side of the NEAP/formal open space and has been the response
to the easement constraint. This would have mown paths and meadow grasses to create a more
informal appearance. This would have clear and legible routes for north-south connectivity to
Grange Road and serve as a viewing corridor to longer range views northwards.

Pedestrian connectivity has been designed into the scheme and with footways providing ease of
movement and a hierarchy of routes. This would ensure that people could navigate through the
site with clear legibility; to provide a safe, clear pedestrian experience through the site.

Central Space / Play
This would be for active use and be connected by the greenway and to the wider site. The central
location and street connectivity would ensure that this would be accessible. This would be the
location of the pitch as a kickabout space and NEAP which would be at 30m from the nearest
residential building. The DAS describes this space to be at the heart of the development and a
central green space. This would provide a focus and a space for local interaction.

Page 54

Agenda item number: 6



The equipment for the NEAP were agreed under the discharge of conditions of the outline
planning permission.

No comments have been made on the sports pitch and this would meet the requirements of
saved policy R2.

Wetlands/SuDS features
These would be along the boundary to Grange Road and western end. It has been designed to
be accessible on foot with connections to the routes through the site. Also, when dry would
create an alternative walking route that is not part of the street hierarchy. This would ensure that
this space would be functional to occupants and accessible to visitors as well, so that this would
not become isolated.

This would be informal open space what would also enable biodiversity gains, with long grasses,
wetland meadow mix, native trees and native shrub planting, which would enhance the existing
hedgerow to Grange Road.

Woodland and boundary
The condition of the existing woodland and boundary treatments were assessed, to look for
opportunities to enhance them and provide permeability for pedestrians and wildlife.

The woodland is a recent copse and routes are proposed around the perimeter, including access
to existing informal pathways and would allow this to be informal open space. The boundaries
would be enhanced to create separation to the roads and serve as an ecological corridor.

As the buildings and roadways would be set away from the site boundaries this would enable the
planting of native woodland species to extend the lower canopy out into open space.

To safeguard the badger exclusion zone a green edge with informal planting and footways would
be provided. This would create a visual break and offer a semi-rural outlook to the properties
facing onto this area.

The detailed planting specification has not been submitted and these areas would also require a
suitable management and maintenance scheme to perform reliably over time as the landscape
feature and amenity intended. This could be secured by condition.

Policy D1(6) requires the creation of a high quality public realm, this can include public art as
well. The scheme has proposed the installation of a new village sign at an appropriate position
along The Street and hop frames structures would be incorporated in the landscape strategy at
key positions within the development. Further details would be secured by condition.

Overall, the open space provided has merit in providing opportunities for sport and physical
activity; these would have a clear function and have designed in permeability and connectivity
within and beyond the site boundaries. There create effective linkages across the site for
residents accessing these facilities, which would comply with policies D1(6) and D1(7) of the
Guildford Borough Local Plan: strategy and sites 2019, saved Local Plan policy G5(9) and the
NPPF.

Page 55

Agenda item number: 6



The impact on residential amenity

Neighbour amenity

The site is adjoined by the ambulance station to the south east, Manor House flats to the north
east and sporadic residential and commercial development that fronts onto Grange Road. There
are also residential properties on the opposite site of The Street.

There would be satisfactory gaps between the existing buildings and their gardens to prevent any
material loss of privacy and overshadowing impact. Southfield Cottages on Grange Road would
have the intervening drainage basin and the houses fronting The Street would be set back behind
a landscape edge and footway. The buildings along the shared boundaries with Grange Farm
and Manor House flats would be two storey in height with the gardens providing relief from the
built form. There would be 5, first floor windows from apartment building 3 facing the ambulance
station, 4 of these would serve non-habitable spaces (bathroom and halls) and the fifth window
would be to the open plan kitchen/diner/lounge, as this would face the parking areas there would
be no materially harmful loss of privacy.

Occupier amenity

All of the proposed dwellings include an area of private amenity space and the apartment blocks
generally include communal garden areas. The areas of amenity space vary across the site;
however, all of the dwellings include access to an appropriate area of outdoor amenity space to
meet the passive recreational requirements of the future occupants of the development. The
layout of the buildings has also been carefully designed to ensure that none of the garden areas
suffer unacceptable levels of overlooking or overshadowing from the adjoining buildings.

The FOGs would not have private gardens due to their juxtaposition to adjoining buildings,
gardens and parking courts, however, there is ample informal and formal green space on site.
Therefore, given that there is a small number of these, this would be acceptable in this instance.

Particularly around the flatted blocks, the parking spaces would adjoin the gardens and houses.
Where this would occur the flank walls of the house would be affected, there would be no
openings and brick walls and hedges would be installed to create a buffer so that there is less
disturbance from headlights and car engine noise.

Policy H1(3) of the LPSS requires all new development to conform to the nationally described
space standards (NDSS). The applicant has provided a matrix showing the requirements and
how their units compare. All affordable units in the development either meet or exceed the
standards. All the market units would either meet or exceed the total NDSS gross internal area
(GIA) requirement. So overall, there would be satisfactory space for storage furniture and
circulation space.

When 16/P/00222 was refused by the Council at the committee meeting on 12.10.2016, reason
for refusal 1 was as follows:

1. By virtue of the location of the residential site, in close proximity to both the A31 and A331, the
amenity and living environment of the proposed dwellings and areas of outdoor space would
be poor, due to excessive noise, disruption and pollution. In this regard, the proposal is
deemed to be contrary to policy G1(3) of the Guildford Borough Local Plan 2003 (as saved by
CLG Direction on 24/09/2007) and the guidance contained in the NPPF.

Page 56

Agenda item number: 6



As part of the appeal, the appellant provided a far more comprehensive noise assessment and
mitigation strategy, which was assessed by an independent consultant on behalf of the Council.
Consequently, the Council was ultimately able to agree that a suitable scheme was capable of
being delivered on the site and this reason was withdrawn.

The Inspector in their decision notice, was satisfied that “Based on expert evidence from acoustic
consultants, the main parties agree that the site can be developed at the detailed matters stage
such that the future occupiers of the dwellings would have an acceptable noise environment”
(para. 65). As explained in the layout section the built form has been designed to shield the noise
and the details submitted under condition 10 and with this application has looked at mitigation
measures to reduce internal noise, an approach the Inspector believed would be acceptable.
Therefore, the principle of housing subject to suitable mitigation was agreed at the outline stage.

Noise mitigation is covered under condition 10 of the outline planning permission. The proposed
layout would affect the mitigation required in relation to both external garden areas and internal
living space. Environmental Health confirms that the noise assessment has an acceptable
methodology and the findings are satisfactory as agreed under the discharge of condition 10 on
13.08.2019.

Mitigation from traffic noise from the A331 and A31 would be provided by way of a 3m high,
close-boarded screening fence along the western and the majority of the southern boundary,
together with arranging dwellings in clusters around central garden areas where possible and
positioning of garages and other supplementary fencing.

Further mitigation measures such as enhanced glazing and ventilation are proposed for
properties that are predicted to have internal noise levels above acceptable standards, would be
required.

The submitted assessment indicates that to meet internal noise levels recommended in
BS8233:2014, that glazing must meet a Sound Reduction Index (Rw+Ctr/Dne,w) of 32 for
standard glazing and 40 for those properties in locations requiring enhanced glazing. Therefore,
further details of the make and model of the windows, glazing and ventilation that would be
required to be submitted under condition 10, to ensure that the calculations listed in Appendix A
of the noise assessment can be met.

Concerning external noise levels in gardens/private amenity areas, condition 10 specifies a level
of 55dBLAeq, LAeq16 hour (day-time), should be achieved. With the revised site layout, 39
gardens would have some area of their garden that exceeds this level; however, the majority of
these gardens would have some areas that are at/below the specified level, with 23 having
approximately 50% of the garden area below the level. This would be consistent with the
requirements of condition 10.

Having regard to all of the above it is concluded that the development proposed would not give
rise to unacceptable impacts on the adjoining residential properties and would provide a good
level of amenity for the future occupants of the development. For these reasons the development
complies with the objectives of Policy G1(3) of the Guildford Local Plan 2003 (as saved).

The quantum and layout of the parking

The layout provides for a total of 462 parking spaces to serve the proposed residential units.
The parking requirement in the Vehicle Parking Standards SPD and guidance are as follows
against the on-site provision:

Page 57

Agenda item number: 6



GBC parking standard Surrey CC guidance Provided
1 bed flat 1x 27 = 27 1x 27 = 27
2 bed flat 1.5x 22 = 33 1x 22 = 22
2 bed house 1.5x 64 = 96 1.5x 64 = 96
3+ bed unit 2x 141 = 282 2x 141 = 282

396

Visitor spaces 56
Unallocated spaces 10
TOTAL 462

The parking requirement under the SPD is 438 spaces, there would be an overprovision of 24
spaces. This would ensure that there would be no overspill parking onto the surrounding roads.

For the flats there would be an under-provision of 11 spaces, against the Council’s SPG,
however, there would be 10 unallocated spaces and 56 visitor spaces, to provide additional car
parking capacity.

The houses would have spaces provided in driveways, parking spaces and carports; some of
spaces would be in a tandem arrangement. The 118 garages have been excluded from the
parking provision as they may not be used for parking, however, a condition to require that the
spaces and car carports be maintained for car parking could be required by condition.

The parking for the flats would be arranged in car barns, under croft areas, courts, bays
(adjoining or opposite the building). The accessible bays would be closest to the flat entrances
and spaces would be allocated. Apartment buildings 2, 3, 4 and 5 would have rear parking
courts, given that this would be overlooked by the windows in the buildings and the entrance
would be on the parking court side, this would be acceptable

The visitor spaces would be adjacent to the roadways in bays this would create a clear
delineation that they are unallocated/private spaces and would also serve as parking for delivery
vehicles, to reduce obstructive parking.

The application site is located adjacent to the settlement area and is in a generally sustainable
location within walking distance of schools, shops and local services. The site also has
reasonable accessibility to public transport. It is however likely that the future occupants of the
development would seek to use private cars for a number of journeys. Given the location of the
site, the level of parking is appropriate, and no objection has been raised to the marginal over
provision of parking.

The highway layout

Safe routes

The reserved matters were required to show safe routes for pedestrians/cyclists to travel
between The Street and Grange Road and the development site. A pedestrian access at the
south-eastern corner of the site would be provided in line with the outline application
(16/P/00222), including an informal crossing facility across The Street. This would provide a
connection to existing pedestrian provision on the eastern side of The Street which forms part of
a pedestrian route to the SANG land along the old Hog’s Back Road to the south of the site.

A pedestrian access would also be provided at the north-eastern corner of the site to link with
existing provision on The Street, providing a pedestrian route from the site northward into
Tongham village.

Page 58

Agenda item number: 6



Thirdly, a 3m wide pedestrian / cycle access point from the site onto Grange Road at a point
along the north-western boundary of the site. This would provide a further route for pedestrians
and cycles to the SANG land via Grange Road the shared use ‘Christmas Pie’ cycleway to the
south of the site and the new petrol filling station (under construction).

Refuse strategy

The submitted swept path analysis has been done using a slightly larger vehicle. This
demonstrates that freighters without any impediment. ACE Drawing Number 180630-015I shows
the vehicle swept paths and freighters could gain access to within 5m of the majority of all refuse
collection points for houses. This drawing also shows how a refuse vehicle would access the
entire site without the need to reverse more than 12m at any one point. In addition, the 5 turning
heads are located near driveway crossovers or parking so should prevent on-street parking
occurring within the turning head, therefore the refuse vehicle should have enough manoeuvring
space.

Where there would be re-use collection points, have been designed to be large enough for the
properties they are serving be on a hard surface and be marked on the ground or have signage.
Therefore, further details shall be required so that these would not obstruct the highways and not
harm visual amenity on collection days.

The loop roads and low occurrence of turning heads would ensure that a majority of properties
would be capable of being serviced from the kerbside and would provide satisfactory serving
arrangement for the occupiers and ensure the Council could carry out a collection service.

Cycle and bin storage

The cycle parking requirement in the SPD is 1 cycle space per unit and in the guidance from
Surrey County Council, it is 1 space for 1 and 2 bedroom units and 2 spaces for 3 or more
bedroom unit. There would be 118 garages, and these could be used for cycle storage, many
properties have been provided with a sheltered cycle storage space within the rear garden. The
details of shelters show that they would provide secure and covered storage for cycles.

The apartment blocks would all have secure, internal cycle storage within a short walking
distance of the entrances, to the residential blocks. Whilst it would be preferable for these to be
located closer to entrances for surveillance, this in itself would not warrant refusal, however,
might affect their use.

The ground floor and bin store plans for all the flat blocks shows greater capacity than current
requirements, although for future-proofing this is suitable. They are located within the building so
would integrate with the design of the buildings. There would be some carry distances for
occupier to communal bin stores, however, as they would be next to garages this would ensure
that there would be less intrusive odours. In the case of the houses, bins would generally be
stored in within front/rear gardens, which is an acceptable arrangement.

Landscaping and trees

The planting comprising scrub, trees and hedgerows along the perimeter would be enhanced and
continue to give the site a degree of containment. The tree planting strategy along the boundary
would comprise removing the Lombardy Poplar trees along the frontage of The Street. Some of
this line of trees has already been removed to improve the required highways access to the site.
The Council’s Tree Officer is supportive of the removal of this linear group of Poplar trees
adjacent to The Street.

Page 59

Agenda item number: 6



Whilst, these trees are currently in reasonable health and were recorded as ‘B’ category (as per
BS 5837), they are a very tall, tightly columnar and uniform tree that is usually planted to provide
a windbreak or screen in this location, to shield the hops that were previously grown on the
application site. Given they are mature so highly prone to drop major deadwood and are
susceptible to wind damage. They have a limited useful life expectancy, and due to their location,
adjacent to a major road, their removal as part of the development is considered an appropriate
management strategy. By replacing them with native, semi-mature trees, as set out in the
indicative tree varieties in the planting schedule, this would create enhanced biodiversity
opportunities.

Across the entire site, over 300 new trees are proposed, which more that mitigates the loss of
part of the current tree stock.

The submitted Tree Protection Plan (TPP) would be acceptable and would ensure that all the
retained trees on and adjacent to the development site, would be protected during the
construction process subject to conditions.

Currently there is no detailed soft landscape specifications. The design and access statement,
and landscape plans, refer to proposed tree planting locations, and potential tree species to be
planted. It would be ideal to have precise details of species choice for each location, as soon as
possible. However, a suitably worded condition shall be required, requesting full details of all soft
landscape proposals, including a schedule of landscape maintenance for a minimum period of 10
years.

Ecology and biodiversity

An ecological assessment and update were submitted with the application these state the
following:

majority of land is in arable use with active management
south-eastern area of the site contained an area of fallow set aside land now managed,
has taller plant species
taller vegetation is present at the field boundaries
hedgerows to the north of the woodland in the south of the site and 4-5m in height and is
located on the south eastern boundary of the site
eastern boundary and part of the central boundary contained line of semi-mature Poplar
trees
a small area of young to semi-mature broadleaved woodland is present within the south of
the site
a semi-mature tree belt is located adjacent to the south between the site and the A31
Guildford Road
an active main Badger sett, inactive outlier sett and use of tree belt
potential commuting and foraging resources for bats
good nesting and foraging opportunities for birds
only limited opportunities for common reptile and amphibian species
likely a varied assemblage of common invertebrate species

In response, the following mitigation and enhancement is suggested:
retention of native hedgerows and woodland
new planting would complement the existing for habitat creation
nearest building 30m from Badger sett and footways 20m away
30m exclusion zone for protection of Badgers during construction would be landscaped
after construction to provide new foraging ground
Bat friendly lighting

Page 60

Agenda item number: 6



Garden habits for bats and hedgehogs
Further reptile surveys

During survey work in 2015 a small population of Slow Worms were recorded on the northern
boundary of the site; these surveys are more than 2 years old. A visit to the site on 31.01.2020 to
review all areas on site to consider the extent of any reptile suitability. This comprises the
margins of the site (grassland verges associated with northern boundary) and the areas of rough
grassland and scrub adjacent to the wooded area in the centre of the site. The mitigation strategy
would involve habitat manipulation during the reptile active season (April to September / October)
by systematically reducing the habitat’s suitability (through reducing the vegetation height / cover)
which would encourage any potentially present reptiles to move in to the adjacent and retained
areas, direct supervision of an Ecological Clerk of Works (ECoW). Therefore, an updated reptile
presence / absence surveys would not be required as suitable habitat would be retained.

Surrey Wildlife Trust were satisfied with the mitigation measures and biodiversity gains in the
Ecological Mitigation and Management Plan to discharge condition 6 of 16/P/00222 and the
submitted ecology report, which shall also we required to be complied with by condition.

Hedgehog Gateways of holes in boundary fencing are proposed for continued permeability and
measures for their retention and maintenance are proposed, which can be secured by condition.

The CEMP would ensure that development activity does not adversely affect adjacent habitat and
important species and to ensure that the lighting is sensitive to protected species, these shall be
required by condition in accordance with the CEMP submitted

Swift boxes are shown on the ecology enhancement plan, approved under condition 6, so it is not
necessary to require this.

The soft landscaping scheme proposed, would use more native species of trees and shrubs in
the landscaping of the site, which would be likely to improve the biodiversity value on the site.
Other ecological enhancements which would provide habitats are the proposed meadow mix,
wetland, water bodies (as part of the drainage scheme) and woodland edge. This would include
planting and seeding. The maintenance of the landscape areas was approved under the LEMP
under condition 6 of 16/P/00222.

Legal Agreement Requirements

The principle of the development was established through the grant of the outline application.
This application was subject to a S106 agreement that secured the following:

the delivery of 35% of the units as affordable housing
the delivery of the SANG including details of its future management and maintenance, or, a
contribution to a suitable off-site SANG
payment of the Strategic Access Management and Monitoring (SAMM) contributions made
provide open and play space and then maintain this
delivery of, or financial contribution of £250,000 to works at the Christmas Pie roundabout on
the A331/A31
delivery of, or financial contribution of £75,000 towards local pedestrian and cycle
infrastructure improvements including the Christmas Pie route and Public Right of Way Route
344
a financial contribution of £40,000 towards road safety improvements within the vicinity of the
site including a parking formalisation scheme on The Street`
payment of a Travel Plan monitoring fee of £6,150
financial contributions to education provision including early years, primary and secondary
education

Page 61

Agenda item number: 6



These matters were agreed as part of the negotiations in respect of the outline planning
permission and are not to be revisited as part of this application. There is no requirement for a
legal agreement for this application.

Conclusion

The principle of the development has been established under the outline planning permission
(16/P/00222) and the site allocation under policy A31. The application seeks approval for the
layout of the site as well the scale and appearance of the buildings and the landscaping strategy.

The proposed layout has responded well to the constraints and opportunities on the site and has
good connectivity to existing PROWS and the proposed SANG. The dwellings are traditional in
their design and utilise a palette of materials which would respect to context of development in
the local area.

The landscape strategy results in functional informal and formal areas, that form part of a
coherent green infrastructure network.

The design takes into account the need to mitigate the noise from the A31, Hog’s Back to protect
the amenity of future occupiers.

In all, the proposal is deemed to be acceptable and is therefore recommended for approval.

Page 62

Agenda item number: 6



Page 63

Agenda item number: 7



 
 20/P/00045 – 9 Greenside Close, Guildford 

Not to scale 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Page 64

Agenda item number: 7



App No:  20/P/00045 8 Wk Deadline: 06/03/2020
Appn Type: Full Application
Case Officer: Margarita Romanovich
Parish: Merrow Ward: Merrow
Agent : Mr. Kyle Charlton

Loftplan Designs LTD
Saturn House
Unit 1
Calleva Park
Aldermaston, Reading
RG7 8HA

Applicant: Mr. Rapaport
9 Greenside Close
Guildford
GU4 7EU

Location: 9 Greenside Close, Guildford, GU4 7EU

Proposal: Proposed raising the overall roof height by one metre to facilitate a
loft conversion to habitable accommodation with installation of two
pitched roof dormers to the rear elevation and two rooflights to the
front elevation.

Executive Summary

Reason for referral

This application has been referred to the Planning Committee because more than 10 letters of
objection have been received, contrary to the Officer's recommendation.

Key information

The application site is located within the urban area of Guildford and comprises a link-detached
two-storey dwelling set in a relatively small plot in an estate type of development.

Summary of considerations and constraints

The proposal would have an acceptable scale and design and, as such, would respect the scale
and character of the existing property and the character of the surrounding area.

The proposed development is not considered to result in a detrimental impact on residential
amenities enjoyed by the occupants of the neighbouring properties.

As such, the proposed development is recommended for approval.

RECOMMENDATION:

Approve - subject to the following condition(s) and reason(s) :- 

1. The development hereby permitted shall be begun before the expiration of three
years from the date of this permission.

Reason: To comply with Section 91 of the Town and Country Planning Act 1990
as amended by Section 51(1) of the Planning and Compulsory Purchase Act
2004.

Page 65

Agenda item number: 7



2. The development hereby permitted shall be carried out in accordance with the
following approved plans: Location Plan, Site Plan, Existing Elevations and
Plans LP3557 Rev A, Proposed Elevations and Plans LP3557 Rev A received
on 10/01/20.

Reason: To ensure that the development is carried out in accordance with the
approved plans and in the interests of proper planning.

3. The external finishes of the development hereby permitted, including making
good to the retained fabric, shall match in material, colour, size, style, bonding,
texture and profile those of the existing building.

Reason: To ensure that the external appearance of the building is satisfactory.

Informatives:

1. This statement is provided in accordance with Article 35(2) of the Town and
Country Planning (Development Management Procedure) (England) Order 2015.
Guildford Borough Council seek to take a positive and proactive approach to
development proposals. We work with applicants in a positive and proactive
manner by:

Offering a pre application advice service
Where pre-application advice has been sought and that advice has been
followed we will advise applicants/agents of any further issues arising during
the course of the application
Where possible officers will seek minor amendments to overcome issues
identified at an early stage in the application process

However, Guildford Borough Council will generally not engage in unnecessary
negotiation for fundamentally unacceptable proposals or where significant
changes to an application is required.

Pre-application advice was not sought prior to submission and the application was
acceptable as submitted.

2. If you need any advice regarding Building Regulations please do not hesitate to
contact Guildford Borough Council Building Control on 01483 444545 or
buildingcontrol@guildford.gov.uk.

Page 66

Agenda item number: 7



Officer's Report

Site description.

The application site is located within the urban area of Guildford and comprises a link-detached
two-storey dwelling set in a relatively small plot in an estate type of development.

Proposal.

Proposed raising the overall roof height by one metre to facilitate a loft conversion to habitable
accommodation with installation of two pitched roof dormers to the rear elevation and two
rooflights to the front elevation.

Relevant planning history.
Reference: Description: Decision

Summary:
Appeal:

19/P/01866 Conversion of loft space to habitable
accommodation, including raising the
overall roof height, a 3.6m crown roof
dormer to the rear elevation & 2
roof-lights to the front elevation.

Withdrawn
10/12/2019

N/A

17/P/01776 Erection of a single storey rear
conservatory (retrospective).

Approve
10/10/2017

N/A

Consultations.

Amenity groups/Residents associations
Merrow Residents' Association: Raise an objection.

overbearing impact
loss of privacy
out-of-character with the surrounding properties

Third party comments:

14 letters of representation have been received raising the following objections and concerns:
loss of light and overbearing impact
loss of privacy
would set a precedent
out of keeping with the surrounding area

Planning policies.

National Planning Policy Framework (NPPF):
Chapter 12. Achieving well-designed places

Guildford Borough Local Plan: Strategy and Sites 2015-2034:

The Guildford Borough Local Plan: Strategy and Sites was adopted by Council on 25 April 2019.
The Plan carries full weight as part of the Council’s Development Plan. The Local Plan 2003
policies that are not superseded are retained and continue to form part of the Development Plan
(see Appendix 8 of the Local Plan: strategy and sites for superseded Local Plan 2003 policies).

Page 67

Agenda item number: 7



Policy D1: Place shaping

Guildford Borough Local Plan 2003 (as saved by CLG Direction 24 September 2007):   
G1 General Standards of Development
G5 Design Code
H8 Extensions to Dwellings in Urban Areas

Supplementary planning documents:
Residential Extensions and Alterations SPD 2018

Planning considerations.

The main planning considerations in this case are:

the impact on the scale and character
the impact on neighbouring amenity

The impact on the scale and character

The proposed increase in height of the roof ridge by approximately 1.15m would not be
particularly noticeable due to the prevailing ground slope and the different roof orientation of the
adjoining properties, which would avoid any sense of a loss of uniformity.

The proposed rear dormer windows would be set down from the new ridge line and set in from
the sides. The proposed dormer windows would be proportionate to the scale of the host
dwelling's roof and would be sympathetic to the style of the existing house.

The proposed front rooflights would not be excessive in scale.

The proposal would therefore not have an adverse impact on the scale and character of the
existing property or the character of the surrounding area.

The impact on neighbouring amenity

The neighbouring properties either side of the application site are Nos. 8 and 10 Greenside
Close. To the rear of the application site is No.11 Foxglove Gardens.

The proposed ridge line increase and rear dormer windows would be set at a high level and
would not result in a significant loss of light or overbearing impact to the neighbouring properties.

One of the proposed rear dormer windows would serve a bathroom and would be fitted with
obscure glazing, whilst the other one would serve a bedroom and would be fitted with clear
glazing.

Concerns have been raised in terms of overlooking arising from the proposed rear dormer
windows. Whilst the concerns relating to privacy are understood, it is considered that some level
of mutual overlooking of residential gardens is likely to occur in dense urban environments. In this
instance, there is already much mutual overlooking from upper-floor rear windows into rear
gardens and the addition of a further overlooking dormer window would not be unduly significant
and, as such, would not warrant a refusal on these grounds.

Page 68

Agenda item number: 7



Conclusion

The proposal has been assessed in line with Policies G1, G5 and H8 of the Guildford Borough
Local Plan 2003, Residential Extensions and Alterations SPD 2018, the NPPF 2019 and all other
material considerations. The proposal would have an acceptable scale and design and would not
result in detrimental impact on residential amenities of the neighbouring properties. For these
reasons, the application is acceptable and is therefore recommended for approval.

All objections raised have been taken into consideration.

Page 69

Agenda item number: 7



This page is intentionally left blank



Page 71

Agenda item number: 8



 
 20/W/00029 – 11 The Oval, Guildford GU2 7TS 
 

Not to scale 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Page 72

Agenda item number: 8



App No:  20/W/00029 8 Wk Deadline: 03/04/2020
Appn Type: Residential Extensions
Case Officer: Sakina Khanbhai
Parish: Onslow Ward: Onslow
Agent : Mr C Rowell

Crown Conservatories &
Windows Ltd
1 Avondale Road
Fleet
GU51 3BH

Applicant: Mr & Mrs Askew
11 The Oval
Guildford
Surrey
GU2 7TS

Location: 11 The Oval, Guildford, GU2 7TS
Proposal: Prior notification for a single storey 6.00 metre rear extension,

3.60 metres in height with an eaves height of 2.50 metres.

Executive Summary

Reason for referral

This application has been referred to the Planning Committee by the Planning  Development
Manager as the applicant is a Councillor. 

Key information

The proposal relates to a two storey semi-detached dwelling situated within the urban area of
Guildford. The application is to determine if prior approval is required for a proposed larger home
single storey rear extension measuring 6 metres in depth, 3.6 metres in height with an eaves
height of 2.50 metres.

Summary of considerations and constraints

The proposed development does not fall within the parameters of an area which is restricted
under an Article 4 direction. The proposed development falls within Schedule 2, Part 1, Class A
of the Town and Country Planning (General Permitted Development) (England) Order 2015 (as
amended).

Planning officers therefore recommend prior approval is not required.

RECOMMENDATION:

Informatives:
1. This decision relates expressly to drawing(s) Location Plan, Block Plan Existing

Elevations Page 1, Proposed Elevations Page 2  and additional information
received on 21st February 2020.

Description Plan Number Date received
EXISTING ELEVATIONS - 21 FEB 2020
BLOCK PLAN - 21 FEB 2020
LOCATION PLAN - 21 FEB 2020
PROPOSED ELEVATIONS - 21 FEB 2020

Page 73

Agenda item number: 8



2. The development shall be carried out in accordance with the information that the
developer provided to the local planning authority, unless the local planning
authority and the developer agree otherwise in writing.

3. If you need any advice regarding Building Regulations please do not hesitate to
contact Guildford Borough Council Building Control on 01483 444545 or
buildingcontrol@guildford.gov.uk

Officer's Report

Site description:

The site is a two storey semi-detached dwelling located within the Urban Area of Guildford.

Proposal:

 Prior notification for a single storey 6 metre rear extension, 3.60 metres in height with an eaves
height of 2.50 metres.

Relevant planning history:

88/P/00513 Single storey extension to provide kitchen/breakfast room and enlarged living room
and first floor extension to provide enlarged bedroom- Approved 10/05/88

Permitted Development Considerations:

Article 4 Direction? - No

PD removed through condition? - No

Has the development commenced? - No

It needs to be established whether the proposed development would fall within the parameters of
Class A, of Part 1, of Schedule 2 of the Town and Country Planning (General Permitted
Development) (England) Order 2015 (as amended).

PD Assessment

Class A
Class A allows for the enlargement, improvement or other alteration of a dwellinghouse.
Therefore the proposed side/rear extension(s) shall be considered under Class A.

A.1 Development is not permitted by Class A if:
(a)  permission to use the dwellinghouse as a dwellinghouse has been granted only by virtue of
Class M, N, P, PA or Q of Part 3 of this Schedule (changes of use);
Permission to use the dwellinghouse as a dwellinghouse has not been granted only by
virtue of Class M, N, P, PA or Q of Part 3 of this Schedule 2 of the Town and Country
Planning (General Permitted Development) (England) Order 2015.

Page 74

Agenda item number: 8



(b) as a result of the works, the total area of ground covered by buildings within the curtilage of
the dwellinghouse (other than the original dwellinghouse) would exceed 50% of the total area of
the curtilage (excluding the ground area of the original dwellinghouse);
The total ground area covered by buildings within the curtilage of the dwellinghouse
would not exceed 50% of the total area of the curtilage.

(c) the height of the part of the dwellinghouse enlarged, improved or altered would exceed the
height of the highest part of the roof of the existing dwelling;
The height of the enlarged part would not exceed the height of the highest part of the roof
of the dwellinghouse.

(d) the height of the eaves of the part of the dwellinghouse enlarged, improved or altered would
exceed the height of the eaves of the existing dwellinghouse;
The height of the eaves of the enlarged part would not exceed the height of the eaves of
the existing dwellinghouse.

(e) the enlarged part of the dwellinghouse would extend beyond a wall which -
 (i) forms the principal elevation of the original dwellinghouse; or
 (ii) fronts a highway and forms a side elevation of the original dwellinghouse;
The enlarged part of the dwellinghouse would not extend beyond a wall which forms the
principal elevation or which fronts a highway and forms a side elevation of the original
dwellinghouse.

(f) subject to paragraph (g) the enlarged part of the dwellinghouse would have a single storey
and –
 (i) extend beyond the rear wall of the original dwellinghouse by more than 4 metres in the
case of a detached dwellinghouse, or 3 metres in the case of any other dwellinghouse, or
 (ii) exceed 4 metres in height;
see (g).

(g) until 30th May 2019, for a dwellinghouse not on article 2(3) land nor on a site of special
scientific interest, the enlarged part of the dwellinghouse would have a single storey and—
 (i) extend beyond the rear wall of the original dwellinghouse by more than 8 metres in the
case of a detached dwellinghouse, or 6 metres in the case of any other dwellinghouse, or
 (ii) exceed 4 metres in height;
The dwellinghouse is not on article 2(3) land or a SSSI. The enlarged part would have a
single storey and would not exceed 6 metres in depth or exceed 4 metres in height.

(h) the enlarged part of the dwellinghouse would have more than a single storey and—
 (i) extend beyond the rear wall of the original dwellinghouse by more than 3 metres, or
 (ii) be within 7 metres of any boundary of the curtilage of the dwellinghouse being enlarged
which is opposite the rear wall of that dwellinghouse;
N/A. The enlarged part of the dwellinghouse would not have more than one storey.

(i) the enlarged part of the dwellinghouse would be within 2 metres of the boundary of the
curtilage of the dwellinghouse, and the height of the eaves of the enlarged part would exceed 3
metres;
The enlarged part of the dwellinghouse would be within 2 metres of the boundary of the
curtilage of the dwellinghouse and the height of the eaves of the enlarged part would not
exceed 3 metres.

Page 75

Agenda item number: 8



(j) the enlarged part of the dwellinghouse would extend beyond a wall forming a side elevation of
the original dwellinghouse, and would -
 (i) exceed 4 metres in height,
 (ii) have more than one storey, or
 (iii) have a width greater than half the width of the original dwellinghouse; or
N/A. The enlarged part of the dwellinghouse would not extend beyond a wall forming a
side elevation of the original dwellinghouse.

(ja) any total enlargement (being the enlarged part together with any existing enlargement of the
original dwellinghouse to which it will be joined) exceeds or would exceed the limits set out in
sub-paragraphs (e) to (j);
The total enlargement would not exceed the limits set out in sub-paragraphs (e) to (j).

(k) it would consist of or include -
 (i) the construction or provision of a verandah, balcony or raised platform,
 (ii) the installation, alteration or replacement of a microwave antenna,
 (iii) the installation, alteration or replacement of a chimney, flue or soil and vent pipe, or
 (iv) an alteration to any part of the roof of the dwellinghouse.
It would not consist of or include any of the above.

A.2 In the case of a dwellinghouse on article 2(3) land, development is not permitted by Class A if
-
(a) it would consist of or include the cladding of any part of the exterior of the dwellinghouse with
stone, artificial stone, pebble dash, render, timber, plastic or tiles;

(b) the enlarged part of the dwellinghouse would extend beyond a wall forming a side elevation of
the original dwellinghouse; or

(c) the enlarged part of the dwellinghouse would have more than one storey and extend beyond
the rear wall of the original dwellinghouse.

(d) any total enlargement (being the enlarged part together with any existing enlargement of the
original dwellinghouse to which it will be joined) exceeds or would exceed the limits set out in
sub-paragraphs (b) and (c).
The site is not located on article 2(3) land.

A.3 Development is permitted by Class A subject to the following conditions:
(a) the materials used in any exterior work shall be of similar appearance to those used in the
construction of the exterior of the existing dwellinghouse;
The submitted plans state that the materials used would match those used in the
construction of the exterior of the existing dwellinghouse

(b) any upper-floor window inserted on a wall or roof slope forming a side elevation of the
dwellinghouse shall be:
 (i) obscure-glazed and
 (ii) non-opening unless the parts of the window which can be opened are more than 1.7
metres above the floor of the room in which the window is installed.
N/A.

Page 76

Agenda item number: 8



(c) where the enlarged part of the dwellinghouse has more than a single storey, or forms an
upper storey on an existing enlargement of the original dwellinghouse, the roof pitch of the
enlarged part must, so far as practicable, be the same as the roof pitch of the original
dwellinghouse.
N/A.

Neighbouring Amenity

The closest neighbouring properties to the application site are the adjoining semi-detached
property No.13 The Oval,  No.9 The Oval and Nos 16 and 14 Old Palace Road.

No neighbour letters have been received to date.  This will be further updated on in the late
sheets for Planning Committee.

The proposed development therefore complies with the criteria set out in Class A, Part 1,
Schedule 2 of the Town and Country Planning (General Permitted Development) (England) Order
2015 (as amended).

Page 77

Agenda item number: 8



This page is intentionally left blank



   

 

 

Planning Committee 
 

25 March 2020 
 

Planning Appeal Decisions 
 

The following appeal decisions are submitted for the Committee's information and 
consideration.  These decisions are helpful in understanding the manner in which the Planning 

Inspectorate views the implementation of local policies with regard to the Guildford Borough 
Local Plan: strategy and sites 2015 - 2034 and the National Planning Policy Framework 

(NPPF) March 2012 and other advice.  They should be borne in mind in the determination of 
applications within the Borough.  If Councillors wish to have a copy of a particular decision 

letter, they should contact 
Sophie Butcher (Tel: 01483 444056) 

 

1. 1 
1. 

Mr James Gross 
37 Stoke Fields, Guildford, GU1 4LT 
 
19/P/00868 – The development proposed is the construction of a ground floor 
single storey rear extension, the enlargement of the existing basement and the 
construction of new side and rear boundary walls.  The enlargement of the 
front basement window, the construction of associated lightwell and associated 
railings. 
 
Delegated Decision – To Refuse 
 
Summary of Inspector’s Conclusions: 

 The main issues are the effect of the proposed development on the 
character and appearance of the existing building and the surrounding area, 
including the Stoke Fields Conservation Area; and 

 The effect of the proposed development on the living conditions of the 
occupants of No.39 Stoke Fields, with particular reference to outlook and 
light. 

 The appeal site is part of a terrace of 6 similarly-designed properties.  The 
property has a two-storey projection to the rear and a single storey 
outhouse (used as a utility room) beyond this.  A gap of approximately 2.4m 
is present between the two-storey projection and the party wall to No.39 
Stoke Fields. 

 With a width of over 4m, the proposal would engulf the existing gap, and 
encompass a large part of the outhouse, extending significantly towards the 
boundary with No.35 Stoke Fields.  It would extend as far back as the 
existing combination of the width, depth and height, would create a bulky 
addition that would not be sufficiently subservient to the host property. 

 Although the pitch angle of the proposed roof would be similar to that of the 
outhouse, it would be significantly at odds with the pitch angle of the roof of 
the main dwelling, resulting in an awkward relationship.  This awkward 
relationship would be continued via the placement of the glazing, which 
would not sit well within the existing fenestration arrangements, with their 
pronounced vertical emphasis.  Whilst the contemporary design ethos is 
recognised , the extension’s poor integration with the host property would 
harm its appearance.   

 The appeal site is located within the Stoke Field’s Conservation Area.  The 
row of terraced dwellings which the appeal property is part of has a clear 
rhythm, with levels being a defining feature.  In accordance with the 
Framework, I give great weight to the conservation of this heritage asset.   

 
 
 
DISMISSED 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Page 79

Agenda item number: 9



   

 

 

 The proposal would increase the height of the party wall to No.39 by over 
1m, with the ridge height of the extension extending nearly 1m higher than 
this.  At this height, the proposal would appear as an incongruous element 
in the street scene, due to being an isolated example of an extension at this 
scale, when viewed from Stoke Grove.   

 A large proportion of the glazing would be visible above the rear alley wall, 
and would appear out-of-place when viewed from Stoke Grove, due to its 
relationship with the existing property and the lack of similar examples in 
the locality.  The proposed materials (including the use of London type brick 
and black/graphite coloured metal doors and glazing) would not off-set the 
incongruous nature of the proposal and its negative effect on the character 
of the area. 

 The proposal would markedly contrast with these nearby extensions, in that 
the proposal would extend noticeably further beyond the two-storey 
projection of the host property.  I do not consider that those nearby 
extensions are comparable with the proposal. 

 Given the harm that I have identified, it follows that the proposal would not 
preserve or enhance the character or appearance of the SFCA.  Whilst the 
harm that would be caused to the significance of the conservation area 
would be less than substantial, because the proposal would only be visible 
from a small part of the SFCA, this harm needs to be weighed against the 
public benefits of the proposal. 

 The proposal offers several public benefits impacting on the character of the 
area, including: the reconstruction of the party wall to No 39 (including a 
timber screen); the use of thin-framed steel ‘Crittal’ windows for the 
extension; the replacement of timber fencing with a rear garden wall 
(including the use of reclaimed bricks to create a period-specific finish); a 
new timber gate with vertical boarding; the removal of down and soil vent 
pipes from the façade of the property; the addition of a new basement 
window and lightwell; and a new plinth and metal railings.   

 All of these public benefits taken together do not outweigh the harm that I 
have identified.   

 Overall, I conclude that the proposal would have an unacceptable and 
harmful effect on the character and appearance of the existing building and 
the surrounding area, including the SFCA.  

 The proposal is contrary to Policy D3 of the Guildford borough Local Plan: 
strategy and sites (2015 – 2034) (adopted 25 April 2019) which states that 
development of the highest design quality that will sustain and, where 
appropriate, enhance the special interest, character and significance of the 
borough’s heritage assets and their settings and make a positive 
contribution to local character and distinctiveness will be supported.  

 Due to its projection and proposed location, the proposed extension 
breaches the 45-degree guideline, specified in the Residential Extensions 
and Alterations Supplementary Planning Document (2018) (‘SPD’).   

 The proposal would be likely to cause overshadowing to the rear of No.39, 
including a loss of light to the living room window.    

 Considering the orientation of No 39 to the appeal property, and taking 
account of the height of the proposed extension and its roof pitch, any 
further overshadowing would not be significant.  Accordingly, the proposal is 
acceptable with regards to light. 

 The expanse of built form on the party boundary with no 39 would result in 
an imposing and overly-dominant structure close to the garden and living 
room window of No.39.   

 Although single storey, the scale of the extension would result in an 

Page 80

Agenda item number: 9



   

 

 

overbearing structure that would be materially detrimental to the outlook 
from No.39’s living room window.   

 The proposals enclosing effect would also make the rear garden of No 39 
much less pleasant to use.  Accordingly, the single storey rear extension 
would be detrimental to the living conditions of the occupants of No 39.   

 The proposal would resolve the existing issue where overlooking is possible 
from the kitchen windows of No.37 to the windows opposite at No.39.  
However, this benefit would not offset the dominating and harmful effect 
caused by the overall mass of the proposal on the living conditions of the 
occupants of no.39.   

 Whilst any overshadowing would be minimal, I conclude that the proposed 
development would have an unacceptable and harmful effect on the living 
conditions of the occupants of No.39 Stoke Fields, with particular reference 
to outlook.   

 The proposal conflicts with saved policy G1(3) of the Guildford Borough 
Local Plan (adopted January 2003) which seeks to protect the amenities 
enjoyed by occupants of buildings from unneighbourly development.  The 
proposal is also contrary to paragraph 127 f) of the Framework which seeks 
to create places that promote a high standard of amenity for existing and 
future users.  The proposal also conflicts with the advice given in the SPD, 
regarding avoiding overbearing impacts. 

 The appeal should be dismissed. 

2.  
2. 

Mr Stuart Freeman 
Vacant plot between Homecroft and High Steeps, Peaslake Lane, 
Peaslake, Guildford, GU5 9SY 
 
19/P/00780 – The development proposed is described as “a detached 
residence with 4 bedrooms and all usual ancillary facilities, on two levels, on 
an undeveloped plot.  Provision of two car spaces at pavement level with 
storage facilities for waste bins are also part of the scheme”.   
 
Delegated Decision – To Refuse 
 

 The main issues are the effect of the development on the character and 
appearance of the area, including the Surrey Hills Area of Outstanding 
Natural Beauty and Area of Great Landscape Value. 

 The setting of the Peaslake Conservation Area; 

 Trees within and adjoining the site and any resulting visual effect, and 

 Any protected species. 

 The proposed dwelling would be sited on an elevated section of the hillside.  
The building would be stepped into the slope and to accommodate the 
length of the building it would be necessary to undertake a reasonably 
extensive amount of excavation.   

 The quite significant bulk of the building stretching back into the site would 
be conspicuous in some narrow-angled views from the road.   

 The height of the front elevation, the elevated position of the building on the 
slope and the overall bulk would, from the front of the site, appear as a 
harmful intrusion of built form on this open site section of land. 

 The works to excavate part of the frontage and provide a car parking area 
would be clearly visible and add to the combined impact of a significant and 
prominent change to the visual appearance of the site.   

 The site does not have the benefit of any sizeable and established trees 
towards the front of the site to help soften the impact of the proposed 
dwelling.  In these circumstances the proposal would appear as a jarring 

 
 
DISMISSED 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Page 81

Agenda item number: 9



   

 

 

introduction of development and would not assimilate successfully into the 
landscape in the same way as those nearby dwellings which are positioned 
further up the slope. 

 The Old Surgery is a prominent building and its siting is not in general 
accordance with the pattern and form of the surrounding buildings on this 
side of the road.  Nevertheless, I do not consider that because this building 
is prominent it justifies a further and in this case sizeable building that 
would be prominent and bulky, and unduly detract from the appearance of 
the appeal site. 

 In mid-distance views from along the road the side boundary trees would 
screen the proposed dwelling and the parking area would have less of an 
impact.  There are limited views of the site from the other side of the valley.  
However, in the area in front of the site the impact would be pronounced 
and cause harm to the character and appearance of the area.  This harm 
could not be satisfactorily ameliorated by a landscaping scheme for the 
reasons explained above. 

 The site is also located with the Area of Great Landscape Value (AGLV) 
and for the same reasons the site would not preserve the distinctive 
character and appearance of this part of the AGLV. 

 I conclude that the proposal would harm the character and appearance of 
the area, including the AONB and AGLV.  Consequently, the proposal 
would not comply with saved policy G5 of the Guildford Borough Local Plan 
2003 (the Local Plan 2003), policies P1 and D1 of the Guildford Borough 
Local Plan ; Strategy and Sites 2015 – 2034 (the Local Plan 2019) and the 
Framework which seek, amongst other things, that all new development will 
be required to achieve high quality design that responds to distinctive local 
character, including landscape character, of the area in which it is set. 

 The Peaslake Conservation Area (CA) is in part significant because it 
consists of a range of traditional and vernacular buildings, including some 
more modest cotttages as well as the public house and church, often with 
stone or hedged front boundaries, in a generally verdant village setting.   

 The scheme would replace part of the front boundary bank with an 
excavated area for the parking of cars, steps and front boundary walls.  
While the plans show areas of planting, the proposals would nevertheless, 
diminish the undeveloped character of the frontage area and replace it with 
one with a more developed feel with car parking and related hard surfacing.  
This would erode some of the positive contribution that the site makes to 
the street scene and the views towards the CA.  In this way, the scheme 
would detract from the setting of the CA.   

 The effect of the proposal would be to cause minor harm to the setting of 
this part of the CA and therefore detract from the significance of this 
heritage asset.  The harm to the CA as a whole would be less than 
substantial within the meaning of paragraph 196 of the Framework.   

 The benefits of the scheme would be the provision of an additional unit of 
accommodation, built to high environmental standards, in a location that 
appears to have reasonable access to services, facilities and public 
transport.   

 There would be social and economic benefits to the local area both during 
construction and in subsequent occupation.  However, as a single unit of 
accommodation would be provided these public benefits would be minor 
and afford no more than limited weight. 

 I conclude that the proposal would harm the setting of the CA and that this 
would not be outweighed by the public benefits.   

 It is explained that there is every intention to maintain and protect the trees 

Page 82

Agenda item number: 9



   

 

 

alongside the boundaries and that indeed there would be supplementary 
planting.   

 Nevertheless, the scheme proposes reasonably extensive excavations of 
sections of the hillside, some form of foundation to assist with the 
construction of the dwelling and terrace areas formed to the rear of the 
property.   

 In the absence of comprehensive and technical evidence to demonstrate 
that the trees would not be adversely affected during the build process and 
subsequently, I consider it necessary to take a precautionary approach.   

 The trees are an important and valuable feature of the local area and I am 
not satisfied that they would not be adversely affected by the proposal. 

 I conclude that I need to take a precautionary approach because the 
development has the potential to adversely effect protected species.  The 
scheme has not been demonstrated to comply with saved Policy NE4 of the 
Local Plan 2003 and the Framework which concerns, species protection. 

 I conclude that the appeal is dismissed. 
 

 
3. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Mr and Mrs D Rickwood 
Rogate, Seale Lane, Seale, GU10 1LF 
 
19/P/00945 – The development proposed is single storey rear extension. 
 
Delegated Decision – To Refuse 
 

 The appeal site is within the Green Belt and so the main issues are: 

 Whether the appeal development is inappropriate development for the 
purposes of the NPPF. 

 The effect of the proposal on the openness of the Green Belt; and 

 If the proposal is inappropriate development, whether the harm by reason of 
inappropriateness, and any other harm, is clearly outweighed by other 
considerations, so as to amount to the very special circumstances 
necessary to justify it. 

 The appeal property comprises a detached, chalet-style dwelling which 
forms part of a lose-knit line of dwellings on the north side of Seale Lane.  It 
lies within the AONB and AGLV.  The proposal is a single-storey, flat-
roofed rear extension to the kitchen/breakfast room. 

 By referencing the site planning history, the Council has determined that the 
original dwelling was a single storey property with a total floor area of 
approximately 88sqm.  On this basis, given that the current dwelling has a 
floor area of around 155sqm and the floor area of the proposed extension is 
approximately 20.3sqm, the resulting total size of the appeal property would 
be about 175.3sqm.  This would represent an uplift over and above the 
original dwelling floorspace of around 99.2%.   

 I find that such a large increase in total floorspace means that the appeal 
development would result in an addition to the original building that would 
be disproportionate in the terms of Paragraph 145 of the Framework.   

 The appeal scheme would be inappropriate development in the Green Belt, 
having regard to policy P2 of the GBLP and the Framework. 

 Openness has a spatial as well as a visual aspect.  In terms of the former, 
the proposal would add bulk, mass and volume to the existing building, 
having a footprint of around 3.5m by 5.8m and a height of about 3.1m, plus 
a roof lantern.  I find that the proposal would result in a moderate reduction 
in the openness of the Green Belt. 

 The proposal would be sited to the rear of the dwelling and would effectively 

 
 
 
DISMISSED 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Page 83

Agenda item number: 9



   

 

 

‘square off’ the rear part of the building, with a flatted-roof addition that 
would have a lower and less bulky roof form than that of the existing rear 
building projection.   

 The size of the proposal would be subservient to that of the existing building 
and the extension would respect the scale of the main house.  The 
development would be sited at the back of the dwelling and would not be 
visually prominent within the prevailing built context of the group of 
residential properties within which the appeal site sits.  I find that in visual 
terms, there would be no harm to the openness of the Green Belt. 

 The absence of visual intrusion does not mean that there is no impact on 
the openness of the Green Belt as a result, and this does not affect the 
above findings on the spatial aspects of the development. 

 The appeal property would be inappropriate development in accordance 
with the terms set out in the Framework and Policy P2 of the GBLP.   

 I conclude that the appeal should be dismissed. 

 
4. 
 
 
 

Mr R Hunt  
Highlands Farm, Portsmouth Road, Ripley, GU23 6EY 
 
19/P/00580 – The development proposed is erection of two buildings, laying of 
hardstanding, associated engineering operations and change of use to mixed 
use agricultural and equestrian following demolition of agricultural buildings. 
 
Delegated Decision – To Refuse 
 

 The main issues are whether the proposal would be inappropriate 
development in the Green Belt having regard to the National Planning 
Policy Framework and any relevant development plan policies. 

 The effect of the proposal on the openness of the Green Belt; 

 The effect of the proposal on the character and appearance of the area; and 

 If the proposal would be inappropriate development, whether any harm by 
reason of inappropriateness, and any other harm, is clearly outweighed by 
other considerations, so as to amount to the very special circumstances 
necessary to justify the development. 

 Highlands Farm comprises around 9.3 ha of land, located in the countryside 
between the villages of Ripley and Send Marsh.   

 The appeal proposal comprises the aforementioned two pitched roof, box 
profile metal clad Buildings A and B, the laying of concrete hardstanding 
around the buildings within the farmyard, the construction of a track to the 
north of the farmyard, a retaining wall close to east side of the farmyard and 
the construction of raised planters to the side of Buildings A and B. 

 The appellant contends that the proposed equestrian use, whether 
commercial or not, falls within the definition of outdoor sport and recreation. 

 The appellant has submitted an Equestrian Appraisal and Business Plan as 
part of the Appeal Statement, confirming that the equestrian stock would be 
the focus of the business operation, and that the horses to be reared are 
intended to be of racing quality.   

 The appellant’s submitted information confirms that the equestrian use 
would be a commercial business for the rearing and breeding of horses for 
sale, irrespective of whether they are sold for racing purposes or personal 
recreational use.   

 I acknowledge the appellant’s assertion that the proposal would contribute 
more widely to the outdoor sport of horse racing, but the proposal would not 
involve sporting or recreational activities taking place on the appeal site.   

 I do not find the proposed mixed use of the site for agriculture and 

 
 
 
DISMISSED 
 
 
 
 
 

Page 84

Agenda item number: 9



   

 

 

equestrian use to comprise an exception to inappropriate development 
within the Green Belt when assessed against Paragraphs 146 e) of the 
Framework. 

 Given my findings on the proposed equestrian use not falling within a sport 
or recreation use, Buildings A and B would therefore not accord with the 
exceptions to inappropriate development in the Green Belt within 
paragraphs 145 a) and 145 b) of the Framework. 

 Following my visit, I find the new buildings to have a visually intrusive 
impact on the surrounding countryside, due to a combination of their large 
footprints, height and massing, green metallic material, pitched roof design 
and proximity to each other.  They appear visible above the height of the 
site perimeter fencing when viewed from public viewpoints outside the site. 

 Taking into account the likely reduction in overall floor space based on the 
submitted valuation report, and the visually prominent nature of the new 
buildings, as witnessed on my site visit, I conclude that Buildings A and B 
have resulted in a moderate impact on the openness of the Green Belt. 

 The appellant contends that the level of unbuilt on land has not been 
increased by the formation of the access track and hardstanding.  I find that 
the evidence before me is inconclusive with respect to the previous amount 
of hardstanding within the farmyard, the land levels within the area of the 
retaining wall and amount of previous built development on the site of the 
raised planters.  Therefore, I am unable to assess with any certainty 
whether these elements of the scheme have had a greater impact on the 
openness of the Green Belt and the purpose of including land within it than 
the previous development that existed on the site. 

 I conclude that the access tracks have a greater impact on the openness of 
the Green Belt than the previous development on this part of the site.   

 I therefore conclude that the development as a whole would not comprise 
an exception to inappropriate development when assessed against 
paragraphs 145 a) and b) and paragraphs 146 b) and e) of the Framework.   

 It would also fail to safeguard the countryside from encroachment, and 
would therefore not comply with the fundamental aim of Green Belt policy 
to prevent urban sprawl by keeping land permanently open.   

 The proposal would harm the intrinsic rural character and appearance of the 
countryside.  It would be contrary to Policy D1 of the Guildford Borough 
Local Plan 2019 which requires new development to achieve a high quality 
design that responds to the distinctive local character, including landscape 
character of the area in which it is set. 

 I conclude that the appeal should be dismissed. 
 

Page 85

Agenda item number: 9



This page is intentionally left blank


	Agenda
	3 Minutes
	5 Planning and related applications
	6 19/P/02102 - Land at Manor Farm, The Street, Tongham, GU10 1DG
	19P02102 Land At Manor Farm location plan
	19P02102 - Land at Manor Farm block plan
	19P02102 land at    Final

	7 20/P/00045 - 9 Greenside Close, Guildford, GU4 7EU
	20P00045 9 Greenside Close location plan
	20P00045 - 9 Greenside Close block plan
	20P00045 9 Greenside   final

	8 20/W/00029 - 11 The Oval, Guildford, GU2 7TS
	20W00029 11 The Oval location plan
	20W00029 - 11 The Oval block plan
	20W00029 11 The Oval   Final

	9 Planning appeal decisions

